
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

Adoption of the Regular Council agenda of January 27, 2015. 
 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

Adoption of the Regular Council minutes of January 13, 2015. 
 

PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD 

 

PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

West Coast Estonian 
Festival 

A presentation by Harry Jaako, Vice Chairman, Estonian League of the West 
Coast and Honorary Consul for Estonia in British Columbia, regarding an 
introduction to the West Coast Estonian Festival, August 5-9, 2015, Whistler. 
 

Cheakamus Crossing A presentation by Eric Martin, President of Whistler2020 Development 
Corporation, regarding the Business Plan. 
 

Council Retreat and 
Corporate Plan 

A presentation by Mike Furey, Chief Administrative Officer, regarding the recent 
Council retreat and Corporate Plan. 
 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

INFORMATION REPORTS 

2015 May Long Weekend 
Committee 
Report No. 15-018 
File No. 2100 
 

That Council appoint a Select Committee of Council entitled the "2015 May 
Long Weekend Committee.” 
 
That Council appoint a Council representative to the 2015 May Long Weekend 
Committee; and further, 
 
That Council endorse the Terms of Reference for the 2015 May Long Weekend 
Committee attached as Appendix A to Council Report 15-018. 

  

A G E N D A  R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  O F  M U N I C I P A L  C O U N C I L  

T U E S D A Y ,  J A N U A R Y  2 7 ,  2 0 1 5  S T A R T I N G  A T  5 : 3 0  P M  

In the Franz Wilhelmsen Theatre at Maurice Young Millennium Place 
4335 Blackcomb Way, Whistler, BC V0N 1B4 
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ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

Whistler 2020 
Development 
Corporation – Business 
Plan, January 2015 
Report No. 15-025 
File No. 8200.26 
 

That Council receive and endorse the Business Plan of Whistler 2020 
Development Corporation, dated January 2015 and attached as Appendix A to 
Administrative Report 15-025. 
 

Commercial Vehicle 
Parking Program 
Report No. 15-019 
File No. 4700 
 

That Council direct staff to engage with Main Street merchants on the proposed 
changes to the Commercial Parking Program.  
 

Blueberry Hill Land Use 
Contract Amendment to 
the Gross Floor Area 
Definition – 3506 and 
3510 Falcon Crescent 
Report No. 15-024 
File No. RZ1098, 
RZ1099, Bylaw 2072  
 
 

That Council consider giving first and second readings to Land Use Contract 
Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015; and, 
 
That Council authorize the Corporate Officer to schedule a public hearing 
regarding Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015 
and to advertise for same in the local newspapers; and further, 
 
That Council authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute any 
necessary legal documents for this application. 
 

Bylaw Amendments for 
the Winter Use of Lost 
Lake Cross Country and 
Snowshoe Trails  
Report No. 15-020 
File No. 7737.1 
 

That Council consider giving first, second and third reading to Park Use 
Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2074, 2015; and 
further, 
 
That Council consider giving first, second and third reading to Municipal Ticket 
Information System Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 
2075, 2015. 

 
Whistler.com Systems 
Inc. 2013 and 2014 
Annual Filing 
Report No. 15-021 
File No. Vault 
 

That the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolve that the Municipality, as one of the shareholders of 
Whistler.com Systems Inc., pass the consent resolutions of the shareholders of 
Whistler.com Systems Inc., copies of which are attached to this report No.15-021 
as Appendix A and D, and that the Mayor and Corporate Officer execute and 
deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of the Municipality. 
 

Tourdex.com Systems 
Inc. 2013 and 2014 
Annual Filing 
Report No. 15-023 
File No. Vault 
 

That the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolve that the Municipality, as one of the shareholders of 
Tourdex.com Systems Inc., pass the consent resolutions of the shareholders of 
Tourdex.com Systems Inc., a copies of which are attached to Administrative 
Report No.15-023 as Appendix A and D, and that the Mayor and Corporate 
Officer execute and deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of the Municipality. 
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Whistler Housing 
Authority Ltd. 2014 
Annual Filing 
Report No. 15-022 
File No. Vault 
 

WHEREAS the Resort Municipality of Whistler is the sole shareholder of Whistler 
Housing Authority Ltd. (“the Company”); 
 
PURSUANT to the Articles of the Company, the following resolutions are passed 
as resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company, duly consented to in 
writing by all of the directors of the sole shareholder of the Company. 
 
That Council waive the requirement of holding an Annual General Meeting of the 
shareholder of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd., deemed to be held on December 
7, 2014; 
 
That Council accept the attached Financial Statements of Whistler Housing 
Authority Ltd. for the year ending December 31, 2013;  
 
That Council resolve that the following persons be and are hereby appointed 
directors of the Company, so that the Board of Directors is therefore composed of 
the following seven persons, to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting 
or until their successors are elected or appointed: 
 
Jonathan Decaigny 
Sharon Fugman 
Brian Good 
Michael Hutchison 
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden 
Duane Jackson 
John Grills; 
 
That Council endorse the appointment of BDO Canada as auditor of Whistler 
Housing Authority Ltd. for the current fiscal year; and further 
 
That the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the annual 
Shareholders’ Resolutions as attached (in lieu of the 2014 Annual General 
Meeting) of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
 

 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 

Advisory Design Panel Minutes of the Advisory Design Panel meeting of November 19, 2014. 

 

BYLAWS FOR FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 

Land Use Contract 
Amendment Bylaw 
(Blueberry Hill) No. 
2072, 2015 
 

The purpose of Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 
2015 is to amend the existing Blueberry Hill Land Use Contract’s  gross floor 
area definition for the specified properties and to replace the existing gross floor 
area definition in the Land Use Contract with the definition in Zoning Bylaw No. 
303 with its’ excluded floor areas with respect to basements, crawlspaces and 
void spaces. 
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Park Use Amendment 
Bylaw (Cross Country 
and Snowshoe Trails) 
No  2074, 2015 
 

The purpose of Park Use Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe 
Trails) No  2074, 2015 is to amend Park Use Bylaw No. 1526, 2002  to include 
the prohibition of walking, hiking, running, cycling, snowmobiling and dogs in the 
ski area during the periods of winter operations. 

Municipal Ticket 
Information System 
Amendment Bylaw 
(Cross Country and 
Snowshoe Trails) No. 
2075, 2015 

The purpose of Municipal Ticket Information System Amendment Bylaw (Cross 
Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2075, 2015 is to amend Municipal Ticket 
Information System Bylaw No 1719, 2005 to add the fees for for infractions of 
Park Use Amendment  Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2074, 
2015. 

 

BYLAWS FOR THIRD READING 

Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw (Development 
Permit Exemptions) No. 
2071, 2014 

In general terms, the purpose of Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Development 
Permit Exemptions) No. 2071, 2014 is to: 

 
1. Amend the Zoning Bylaw to exempt single-family and duplex 

development from the requirement to obtain a development permit, 
except for development that is within a development permit area for the 
protection of the environment, 30 metres of the high water mark of a 
stream or the RI1 Residential Infill One zone. 
 

2. Add the following definition of stream: 
 

“stream” includes any of the following that provides fish habitat: 
 

(a) a watercourse, whether it usually contains water or not; 
(b) a pond, lake, river, creek or brook; 
(c) a ditch, spring or wetland that is connected by surface flow to 
something referred to in paragraph (a) or (b). 
 

3.  Replace the definition of “high water mark” with: 
 
“high water mark” means the visible high water mark of a stream where 
the presence and action of the water are so common and usual, and so 
long continued in all ordinary years, as to mark on the soil of the bed of 
the stream a character distinct from that of its banks, in vegetation, as 
well as in the nature of the soil itself, and includes the active floodplain; 
 

4. Delete “natural boundary” and its definition in Section 2 and replace 
“natural boundary” with “high water mark” throughout the bylaw. 
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 CORRESPONDENCE 

Community Enrichment 
Program Report Backs 
File No. 3004 
 

Correspondence regarding 2014 Community Enrichment Program report backs 
from the following organizations: 

 Association of Whistler Residents for the Environment (AWARE) 

 BC Luge Association 

 Get Bear Smart Society 

 North Shore Schizophrenia Society 

 Sea to Sky Invasive Species Council 

 Spring Creek Community School 

 Whistler Adaptive Sports Program (WASP) 

 Whistler Centre for Sustainability 

 Whistler Children’s Chorus 

 Whistler Gymnastics Club 

 Whistler Naturalists 

 Whistler Nordics Ski Club 

 Whistler Roller Girls Society 

 Whistler Sailing Association 

 Whistler Sea Wolves Swim Club 

 Whistler Skating Club 

 Whistler Valley Quilters Guild 

 Whistler Waldorf School 

 Whistler Writers Group 

 Whistler Youth Soccer Club 

 Sea to Sky Community Services – Whistler Parent-Tot Program 

 Women’s Centre 

 Whistler Off Road Cycling Association (WORCA) 

 Zero Ceiling Society 
 

Cheakamus Crossing 
Heating System – 
Follow Up 
File No. 3009 
 

Correspondence from Erica Finnsson, dated January 20, 2015, regarding 
results a survey of Cheakamus Crossing residents of the DES heating system. 

District Energy System 
File No. 3009 
 

Correspondence from Tristan Galbraith, dated January 21, 2015 regarding the 
District Energy System (DES) in Cheakamus Crossing. 

Northern Lights 
Rezoning Completion 
File No. RZ1084 
 

Correspondence from Beau Craig, Strata Property Agent for WRM Strata 
Management and Real Estate Services Ltd., on behalf of the Northern Lights 
Strata Corporation, thanked Council for reviewing and approving the re-zoning 
application at Northern Lights. 
 

Walter Zebrowski 
Memorial Scholarship 
Fund 
File No. 3009 

Correspondence from Ewa Zebrowski, dated December 17, 2014, requesting a 
one-time gift to the Walter Zebrowski Memorial Scholarship Fund. 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 PRESENT:  
 
Acting Mayor J. Crompton  
 
Councillors: S. Anderson, J. Ford, J. Grills, A. Janyk, S. Maxwell 
 
ABSENT: Mayor N. Wilhelm-Morden 
 
Chief Administrative Officer, M. Furey 
General Manager of Infrastructure Services, J. Paul 
General Manager of Corporate and Community Services, N. McPhail 
General Manager of Resort Experience, J. Jansen 
Director of Finance, K. Roggeman 
Director of Planning, M. Kirkegaard 
Corporate Officer, S. Story 
Manager of Communications, M. Comeau 
Senior Planner, M. Laidlaw 
Senior Planner, J. Belobaba 
Planner, A. Antonelli 
Planner, R. Brennan 
Planner, F. Savage 
Planning Analyst, K. Creery 
Planning Analyst, B. McCrady  
Recording Secretary, A. Winkle 
 
General Manager, Whistler Housing Authority, M. Zucht 

 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor J. Grills  
 
That Council adopt of the Regular Council agenda of January 13, 2015. 

CARRIED 
 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell 
Seconded by Councillor J. Grills  
 
That Council adopt the Regular Council minutes and Public Hearing minutes 
of December 16, 2014. 

CARRIED 

M I N U T E S  
R E G U L A R  M E E T I N G  O F  M U N I C I P A L  C O U N C I L  

J A N U A R Y  1 3 ,  2 0 1 5 ,  S T A R T I N G  A T  5 : 3 0  P M  

In the Franz Wilhelmsen Theatre at Maurice Young Millennium Place 
4335 Blackcomb Way, Whistler, BC V0N 1B4 
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PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD 

Denis Ebacher, Cheakamus Crossing, asked a series of questions about the 
District Energy System (DES) in the Cheakamus Crossing neighbourhood. 
 
Mr. Ebacher asked why there were not complete inspection of the DES 
system before residents moved in. 
J. Paul responded that those dwellings were owned and commissioned by 
the Whistler Development Corporation who are not here to answer that 
question. M. Furey responded that we can find that out and we can get 
information on how to contact the Whistler Development Corporation to find 
out if they were inspected. 
 
D. Ebacher asked why there were different installers of the DES systems 
throughout the Cheakamus Crossing area. 
Acting Mayor J. Crompton responded that there were a number of different 
contractors working on the project, and speculated that there may have been 
a different builder for each strata. 
 
D. Ebacher asked about the level certification, standards, and knowledge of 
those doing the installation as determined by WDC.  
J. Paul responded that a discussion would need to be held with WDC, but 
suspected that they would have sought a reasonable level of certification. 
 
D. Ebacher asked if there was an overall inspector or expert overseeing the 
installation and if they were installed to spec at least. 
Acting Mayor J. Crompton responded that would be a question for the WDC. 
M. Furey responded that WDC had some of the top builders in the area 
working on the project, and commented on his confidence in WDC to build 
and construct to the standards required and that they can look into Mr. 
Ebacher’s inquiries.  
 
D. Ebacher asked why residents are having major issues with the system. 
M. Furey responded that the homes were built by WDC and had warrantees 
that covered whatever was built. 
 
D. Ebacher asked how to have the issues discussed with WDC. He asked if 
he is obligated to pay a tax of approximately $700 per year for a system that 
does not work for him.  
Acting Mayor J. Crompton responded that the RMOW has put it in their work 
plan to pick up the report that was dropped by BC Hydro to develop terms of 
reference to understand what kind of performance the system is giving and 
how it compares to regular electrical. He hopes it will be instructive to move 
forward, and understand whether the system is delivering in the way it was 
hoped to do. 
 
D. Ebacher asked who decided that tap water would be included as a liquid in 
the closed loop system, as it causes scaling. He commented cost of water 
treatment is $600. 
J. Paul responded that the municipal system is a closed loop system that 
conveys the thermal energy to the heat pump and does not interact with the 
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water within an owners building. He commented on the quality of the tap 
water and how unlikely it is to be fouling the systems. 
 
D. Ebacher asked what liquid was put in the system and why, and who was 
monitoring the standard of the liquid put in to ensure it would not create 
scaling in three to four years. 
J. Paul responded it comes back to what WDC did for monitoring their 
contract as mechanical engineers.  
 
Acting Mayor J. Crompton encouraged D. Ebacher to bring questions and 
information to Council and WDC. 
J. Paul commented that there were extensive studies done during the design 
phase of the Cheakamus Crossing neighbourhood to set out what the 
savings would be and magnitude of the savings. The purpose of this new 
study is to test those assumptions and determine the levels of efficiency as 
compared to those design assumptions. 
 
Acting Mayor J. Crompton reported that the 2015 budget includes a manual 
that hopefully will bring together information that is easier to consume. 
 
Huxley Smith, 7215 Spruce Grove Way, asked for signage to point out the 
accessible route to the Whistler Gondola Bus Exchange from Skiers Plaza 
which bypasses the route with stairs. 

 

PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

Community Enrichment 
Program Report 

A presentation was given by Chelsey Walker, Executive Director, Whistler 
Adaptive Sports Program Society, reporting back on the 2014 Community 
Enrichment Program grant. 
 

Community Enrichment 
Program Report 

A presentation was given by Mandy Rousseau, Fundraising Director, 
Whistler Off Road Cycling Association (WORCA), reporting back on the 
2014 Community Enrichment Program grant. 
 

Community Enrichment 
Program Report 

A presentation was given by Suzie Soman, Director of Early Child 
Development Services, Sea to Sky Community Services Society, reporting 
back on the 2014 Community Enrichment Program grant. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 Acting Mayor Crompton reported that Council attended a two-day retreat with 
the senior management team on December 17 and 18. The priorities and 
focus of the upcoming four-year Council term were discussed and will set the 
stage for the 2015 budget process and development of an updated Corporate 
Plan. You will hear more about the direction in the coming weeks including a 
presentation planned by Chief Administrative Officer Mike Furey at the next 
council meeting. 
 
Acting Mayor Crompton reported that last month’s busy holiday season was 
very busy. The Village was animated with skating at Whistler Olympic Plaza, 
Family Après, the Whistler Holiday Experience in the Conference Centre, and 
a huge Village-wide New Year’s Eve celebration. In total 2,750 tickets were 
sold to people for the three family-friendly New Year’s Eve venues at Whistler 
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Olympic Plaza, Millennium Place and the Whistler Conference Centre. Over 
5,000 people attended the Fire & Ice show and midnight fireworks at Skiers 
Plaza. The free transit with extra service, which was paid for by the RMOW, 
got everybody home safely at the end of the night. I’d also like to 
acknowledge the excellent work of the many businesses and people of 
Whistler for delivering an amazing resort experience during such an important 
and busy time for our community. 
 
Acting Mayor Crompton congratulated Councillor Grills’ son, Brendan Grills, 
who just qualified as the second youngest cicerone, a sommelier for beer, in 
Canada. 

 
Acting Mayor Crompton reported that in addition to the great offering in the 
Village over the holiday season, the Lost Lake cross-country ski trails opened 
on December 29th. 22 kilometres of trails are available to the public; these are 
open from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. daily. Before these trails opened, cross-country 
skiing was available on Whistler Mountain. Please check the daily ski 
conditions and grooming report before going to the trails. These are available 
at whistler.ca/CrossCountry or by phone at 604-935-PLAY (7529).  
 
Acting Mayor Crompton reported that the Vancouver Symphony Orchestral 
Institute at Whistler dates have been confirmed for June 28 to July 5, 2015, 
and the program is now accepting applications. The RMOW collaboration 
with the award-winning Vancouver Symphony Orchestra to create this 
musical institute offers young musicians training and experience within 
Whistler. The students will play together, and be trained through individual 
and group lessons taught by VSO musicians. The institute furthers the 
municipality’s plans to grow cultural and learning opportunities in Whistler.  
 
Acting Mayor Crompton reported that the Whistler Blackcomb Foundation has 
donated $52,750 to support the Whistler Public Library. $17,750 of this 
money is to build a sun deck for the library. This deck is expected to be 
finished in summer 2015.  
 
Acting Mayor Crompton reported that Council appointed eight members to 
the Advisory Design Panel for the 2015 term earlier today in the closed 
meeting. This panel is a select committee of Council that gives expert advice 
on building and planning decisions.  
 
Acting Mayor Crompton welcomed the new members of the Advisory Design 
Panel:  

 Duane Siegrist, Doug Nelson and Tom Bunting as the three 
professional architects; 

 Elaine Naisby and Crosland Doak as the two professional landscape 
architects; 

 Dale Mikkelsen as the professional land developer; and  

 Pat Wotherspoon and Pamela Frentzel-Beyme as the two regular 
public-at-large members, one of which has professional expertise in 
the development industry. 

 
Acting Mayor Crompton thanked the outgoing members of the committee and 
the ongoing volunteer work of the current members. 
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Acting Mayor Crompton reported that the Resort Municipality of Whistler 
invites community members to an open house to get a look inside four key 
Whistler Village Projects and to share feedback on Wednesday, January 21 
from 3 to 5 p.m. at the Whistler Conference Centre. The open house will 
include: 

 a gallery walk; 

 presentations about the Master Wayfinding Strategy, Village Portals, 
Cultural Connector and Gateway Loop Enhancement projects; 

 a question and answer period; and, 

 opportunities to provide feedback on three potential design options for 
the Gateway (bus) Loop redesign. 

 
These are key projects deliverables from the comprehensive work done by 
the Economic Partnership Initiative during the previous term of council.  
Mark your calendar of January 21 and visit whistler.ca/villageprojects for 
more information. 

 
Acting Mayor Crompton, on behalf of Council, extended condolences to the 
Sage-Donohue family who lost two members of their family during a vehicle 
accident over the holiday season. The family lived in Whistler for many years, 
and have deep ties to the community. A memorial has been scheduled for 
January 17 at the West Coast Railway Heritage Park in Squamish at 5 p.m. 
 
Acting Mayor Crompton, on behalf of Council, extended condolences to the 
families of the three ice climbers who passed tragically on Joffre Mountain 
this past Sunday. 

 
 At 6:04 p.m. a Public Hearing was held for Zoning Amendment Bylaw (CC1 

Zone – Clock Tower Hotel), No. 2070, 2014. 
 
At 6:11 p.m. a Public Hearing was held for Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Retail 
Liquor Sales – 1-4573 Chateau Blvd) No. 2069, 2014. 
 
At 6:14 p.m. the meeting resumed. 

 

INFORMATION REPORTS 

Third Quarter Financial 
Report - 2014 
Report No. 15-002 
File No. 4527 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk 
 
That Council receive Information Report No. 15-002 Quarterly Financial 
Report for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. 

CARRIED 
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ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

LLR 1206 – Savage 
Beagle Permanent 
Change to Hours of Sale 
Report No. 15-008 
File No. LLR 1206 
 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That Council authorize the resolution attached as Appendix “A” to 
Administrative Report No. 15-008 providing Council’s recommendation to the 
Liquor Control and Licensing Branch in support of an application from the 
Savage Beagle located at 4222 Village Square for a Permanent Change to 
Licensed Hours of Sale for Liquor Primary Licence No. 162781, to change 
hours of sale to 9 a.m. to 1 a.m. Monday through Sunday. 

CARRIED 
 

LLR 128 – Listel Hotel 
Extension of Hours for 
February 12 Special 
Event 
Report No. 15-007 
File No. LLR 128 
 

Moved by Councillor S. Anderson  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That Council authorize hours of liquor sale to 4 a.m. on the night of Thursday, 
February 12, 2015 at the Bearfoot Bistro in the Listel Whistler Hotel for a 
Special Occasion Licence for the Revolutions with Paul Oakenfold event. 

CARRIED 
 

DVP 1088 – 2320 
Gondola Way – Height 
Variance 
Report No. 15-016 
File No. DVP 1088 

At 6:34 p.m. Councillor A. Janyk declared a conflict of interest as she lives in 
the area and left the meeting. 
 
Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That Council not approve Development Variance Permit DVP 1088 to vary 
the maximum permitted height of the dwelling at 2320 Gondola Way from 7.6 
metres to 10.01 metres as illustrated on the Architectural Plans A-001, A-101, 
A-102, A-103, A-104, A-201, A-202, A-203, A-204, prepared by Scott 
Densmore, dated December 1, 2014, and attached as Appendix “B” to 
Administrative Report No. 15-016. 

CARRIED 
At 6:42 p.m. Councillor A. Janyk returned. 

 
DVP 1089 – 8160 Crazy 
Canuck Drive – Parking 
Setback Variance 
Report No. 15-004 
File No. DVP 1089 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Council approve Development Variance Permit 1089 to vary the 
parking setback from 1.5 metres to 0 metres from the parcel boundary as 
shown on the site plan prepared by Tia Tait, date stamped received 
September 2, 2014 and attached to Administrative Report 15-004 as 
Appendix B. 

CARRIED 
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DVP 1093 – 4280 
Mountain Square – 
Longhorn Sign 
Variances 
Report No. 15-005 
File No. DVP 1093 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That Council approve Development Variance Permit DVP 1093 for two 
proposed signs for the Longhorn, located at 4280 Mountain Square to: 

1. Install a third fascia sign for the Longhorn on the south frontage of 
the building; and 

2. Install a projecting sign for the Longhorn on the east elevation of the 
building 

as shown on the Sign Drawings prepared by 3DS/Three Dimensional 
Services Inc., dated Sept. 29, 2014 attached as Appendix “B” to 
Administrative Report No. 15-005. 

CARRIED 
 

DVP 1094 – 3804 
Sunridge Place – Front 
Setback Variance 
Report No. 15-006 
File No. DVP 1094 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Council approve Development Variance Permit 1094 to vary the front 
setback from 7.6 metres to 5 meters for the existing basement space of the 
detached dwelling as shown on the Basement Media Plan, Sheet A1.02, 
dated October 22, 2014 and attached to Administrative Report No. 15-006 as 
Appendix B. 

CARRIED 
 

7115 Nesters Road – 
Rezoning Proposal to 
Regularize Existing 
Pension Use 
Report No. 15-010 
File No. RZ1091 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Council endorse further review of Rezoning Application No. 1091; and 
further, 
 
That Council direct staff to prepare the necessary zoning amendment bylaw 
for Council consideration. 

CARRIED 
 

Zoning Amendments - 
Development Permit 
Exemptions  
Report No. 15-011 
File No. RZ 1101 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Council consider giving first and second readings to Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw (Development Permit Exemptions) 2071, 2014; and further, 
 
That Council authorize the Corporate Officer to schedule a public hearing 
regarding Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Development Permit Exemptions) 
2071, 2014. 

CARRIED 
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Blueberry Hill Land Use 
Contract Amendment to 
the Gross Floor Area 
Definition 
Report No. 15-009 
File No. RZ1083, 
RZ1086, RZ1087, 
RZ1089, RZ1092, 
RZ1093, Bylaw 2062 

 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor J. Grills  
 
That Council consider adoption of Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw 
(Blueberry Hill) No. 2062, 2014. 

CARRIED 

New Building Canada 
Fund – 2015 Intake 
Report No. 15-017 
File No. 155.7 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor S. Anderson  
 
That Council direct staff to submit an application under New Building Canada 
Fund – Small Communities Fund for funding assistance for the Compost 
Facility Capacity Improvements (Project E063) as set out in the Five-Year 
Financial Plan. 

CARRIED 
 

Cheakamus Leasing 
Corp. – 2014 Annual 
Filing  
Report No. 15-012 
File No. Vault 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolves that the Municipality, as sole shareholder of 
Cheakamus Leasing Corp; pass the consent resolutions of the sole 
shareholder of Cheakamus Leasing Corp; a copy of which is attached to 
Administrative Report No. 15-012 as Appendix “A”, and that the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer execute and deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of 
the Municipality. 

CARRIED 
 

Emerald Dreams 
Conservation Co. Ltd. –
2014 Annual Report 
Report No. 15-013 
File No. Vault 

 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolves that the Municipality, as sole shareholder of 
Emerald Dreams Conservation Co. Ltd; pass the consent resolutions of the 
sole shareholder of Emerald Dreams Conservation Co. Ltd; a copy of which 
is attached to Administrative Report 15-013, and that the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer execute and deliver the resolutions on behalf of the 
Municipality. 

CARRIED 
 

Whistler 2020 
Development Corp. – 
2014 Annual Report 
Report No. 15-014 
File No. Vault 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolves that the Municipality, as sole Shareholder of 
Whistler 2020 Development Corp., pass the consent resolutions of the 
Shareholder of the Whistler 2020 Development Corp., a copy of which is 
attached to Administrative Report No. 15-014 as Appendix “A”, and that the 
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Mayor and Corporate Officer execute and deliver the resolutions on behalf of 
the Municipality. 

CARRIED 
 

Whistler Village Land 
Co. Ltd. – 2014 Annual 
Report 
Report No. 15-015 
File No. Vault 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting 
assembled, hereby resolves that the Municipality, as sole shareholder of the 
Whistler Village Land Co. Ltd. pass the consent resolutions of the 
shareholder of the Whistler Village Land Co. Ltd., a copy of which is attached 
to Administrative Report No 15-015 as Appendix “A”, and that the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer execute and deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of 
the Municipality. 

CARRIED 
 

RMOW Appointments to 
the Whistler Valley 
Housing Society 
Report No. 15-001 
File No. 7724 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor S. Anderson  
 
That Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler (RMOW), appoint 
Jonathan Decaigny, Cheryl Skribe, Gord Low and Marla Zucht as the four 
RMOW appointees to the Whistler Valley Housing Society (WVHS).  

CARRIED 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 

Public Art Committee Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That minutes of Public Art Committee meeting of October 1, 2014. 

CARRIED 
 

BYLAWS FOR FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 

Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw (Development 
Permit Exemptions) 
2071, 2014 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Development Permit Exemptions) 2071, 
2014 receive first and second readings. 

CARRIED 
 

BYLAWS FOR THIRD READING 

Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw (CC1 Zone – 
Clock Tower Hotel), No. 
2070, 2014 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Zoning Amendment Bylaw (CC1 Zone – Clock Tower Hotel), No. 2070, 
2014 receive third reading. 

CARRIED 
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Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw (Retail Liquor 
Sales – 1-4573 Chateau 
Blvd) No. 2069, 2014 

Moved by Councillor S. Anderson  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Retail Liquor Sales – 1-4573 Chateau Blvd) 
No. 2069, 2014 receive third reading. 

CARRIED 
 

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION 

Land Use Contract 
Amendment Bylaw 
(Blueberry Hill) No. 2062, 
2014 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2062, 2014 
be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Christmas Lights 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor J. Grills  
 
That correspondence from Yvonne Goller, dated January 4, 2015, requesting 
Christmas lights be left up in the village until the end of January be received. 

CARRIED 
 

Cheakamus Crossing  
Heating 
File No.  
 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor J. Ford  
 
That correspondence from Erica Finnsson, dated January 4, 2015, regarding 
the DES heating system in Cheakamus Crorssing be received and referred to 
staff. 

CARRIED 
 

Mountain FM 
Programming 
File No. 3009 
 

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That correspondence from John Wood, dated January 6, 2015, regarding 
Mountain FM programming during traffic issues in the Sea to Sky corridor be 
received and forwarded to Mountain FM. 

CARRIED 
 

UBCM Convention Bid 
File No. 3009 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That correspondence from Sav Dhaliwal, Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) 
President, dated December 8, 2014, regarding awarding the 2016 UBCM 
Convention to the City of Victoria and the 2018 UBCM Convention to the 
Resort Municipality of Whistler be received. 

CARRIED 
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Blue Dot Movement 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
That correspondence Claire Ruddy, AWARE Executive Director, dated 
December 10, 2014, requesting that the development of a declaration of 
environmental rights for Whistler be referred to staff, and requesting to work 
with staff to revisit W2020 to involve the wider community in sustainability 
actions was received and referred to staff. 

CARRIED 
Concrete Medians on 
Highway 99 at Lions 
Bay 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That correspondence from David Tompinks, dated December 29, 2014, 
requesting support on his proposal to the Minister of Transportation and 
Infrastructure and Regional Director requesting a concrete median barriers on 
Highway 99 through Lions Bay was received and referred to staff and the 
Highway Safety Committee. 

CARRIED 
 

Proposed Site C Dam 
Project 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That correspondence from Jacqueline Young, Director of Millenium Financial 
Exchange Corp., dated November 5, 2014, regarding a proposed waste 
energy solution and requesting a meeting be received. 

CARRIED 
 

Waste Energy Solution 
File No. 3009 
 

Moved by Councillor J. Ford  
Seconded by Councillor S. Anderson  
 
That correspondence from Jacqueline Young, Director of Millenium Financial 
Exchange Corp., dated November 5, 2014, regarding a proposed waste 
energy solution and requesting a meeting be received. 

CARRIED 
 

Fortis BC Permit to Drill 
Boreholes 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That correspondence from Mona Helcermanas‐Benge, dated January 2, 
2015, regarding correspondence to the District of Squamish requesting 
postponement of the decision regarding a permit for Fortis BC to drill 
boreholes and expressing concern for the Howe Sound area be received. 

CARRIED 
 

Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities 
Membership 
File No. 3009 

Moved by Councillor S. Maxwell  
Seconded by Councillor A. Janyk 
 
That correspondence from Brad Woodside, Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities (FCM) President, dated December 8, 2014, requesting renewal 
of membership with the Federation of Canadian Municipalities for 2015-2016 
be received and staff be directed to renew the membership. 

CARRIED 
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Pride Week 
File No. 3009.1 

Moved by Councillor J. Grills 
Seconded by Councillor S. Maxwell  
 
Correspondence from Dean Nelson, CEO and Executive Producer of 
Alpenglow Productions, dated December 11, 2014, requesting proclamation 
of “Pride Week” from January 24, 2015 to February 1, 2015. 
Received & proclaimed 

CARRIED 
 

ADJOURNMENT  

Moved by Councillor A. Janyk  
 
That Council adjourn the January 13, 2015 Council meeting at 7:39 p.m. 

CARRIED 

  
 

 

 Acting Mayor J. Crompton 
 

 Corporate Officer: S. Story 
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PRESENTED:  January 27, 2015  REPORT: 15-018 

FROM:   Corporate and Community Services Division FILE: 2100 

SUBJECT: 2015 MAY LONG WEEKEND COMMITTEE 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Corporate and Community Services be 
endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council appoint a Select Committee of Council entitled the "2015 May Long Weekend 
Committee.” 
 
That Council appoint a Council representative to the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee; and 
further, 
 
That Council endorse the Terms of Reference for the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee 
attached as Appendix A to Council Report 15-018. 
 
 
REFERENCES 

Appendix A – May Long Weekend Committee Terms of Reference 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

Council’s approval is sought to create a 2015 May Long Weekend Committee. 

 

DISCUSSION  

The May Long Weekend has presented a long standing concern to this community in terms of 
disturbances, mischief and vandalism of a criminal nature. Subsequently Mayor and Council have 
directed staff to work with resort partners on revised approaches to how this key entry to summer 
event is celebrated. The evolution of the May Long Weekend experience is a work in progress, 
where success towards positive outcomes has being realized, however by incremental steps over 
numbers of years.  

The advent of the 2014 GO Festival over the past May Long Weekend brought to the resort a 
renewed focus on the great outdoors and celebration of our natural environment. This festival has 
helped to begin a transformation of the reasons why people may want to visit Whistler and perhaps 
for locals some motivation to stay home and play.  

A 2015 May Long Weekend Committee has been identified as a need to help build on past work 
and in mobilizing our community towards continued success and better outcomes for the resort.  
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Staff request that Council appoint a Select Committee of Council entitled the "2015 May Long 
Weekend Committee.”   

The Committee shall be composed of six members: 
 

I. One Whistler RCMP representative 
 

II. One Accommodation Sector representative 
 

III. One Food and Beverage Sector representative 
 

IV. One Member of Council 
 

V. One Member-at-Large (preferably with Whistler Events and Festivals experience) 
 

VI.       General Manager of Corporate and Community Services 

 

The committee will consider previous May long weekend experience in Whistler to date, and set 
focus to new and innovative approaches that can be developed to create a more family-friendly 
weekend experience. Staff requests that Council pass resolutions to bring this committee into 
effect, with the understanding it will probably take a number of years to transition the current May 
long weekend experience into what the RMOW and majority in the community want to see in this 
resort. 

 

The 2014 May Long Weekend Committee lessons learned: 

 

 Improve communications with the media on critical event reporting. 
 

 An analysis has been conducted of violation tickets issued, the age demographic and 
the resident addresses of offenders to assist prevention strategies. 
 

 Business sector to consider advancing availability of May Long Weekend travel 
incentive packages that include accommodation, food, beverage and event tickets to 
support the goals of this initiative. 

 

 The GO Festival was observed to be a significant success and was observed to attract 
added visitors to the resort set on celebrating the goals of this initiative.  
 

 The music and events added a retro flare to the resort. The Earth Snow and Water 
Race being a highlight of our past, which brought back many Whistler locals, to 
celebrate our great outdoor offerings.  

 
 More advanced advertising of GO Fest activities and earlier engagement of local 

business in this process in order to build capacity on the success realized is needed 
into future years.  

 
 Open up the festival to include new events, feature those events already underway 

during this weekend and to help encourage new ideas from the community. 
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 Must maintain a high visible police presence on bikes, foot patrols, road checks and 
call response. This must be supplemented by fire rescue, bylaw and private security 
supports. Suggested that increased police presence follow next year with added focus 
to Blackcomb Base and our neighbourhoods.  

 
 Must continue to work with resort partners on the importance of crime reporting, 

becoming more involved in the local featured events and to community initiatives 
aimed at enhancing our resort experience.  

 

The intent of the committee is to help transform the May Long Weekend experience into a 
celebration of the commencement of the summer in a manner that preserves a positive resort 
experience for people who attend the resort.  

 

WHISTLER 2020 ANALYSIS  

W2020 
Strategy 

TOWARD 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves us toward 

Comments  

Health and Social 
The resort community is safe for both 
visitors and residents and is prepared for 
potentially unavoidable emergency events 

Effective and collaborative planning processes 
with all resort stakeholders by the committee 
will help leverage preventative processes and 
strategies to help enhance public safety. 

Economic 
Whistler has a year round and diversified 
economy. 

Successful events and animation initiatives 
supported by local business sectors in 
collaboration with the May Long Weekend 
committee towards improving the visitor 
experience in a traditionally slow season for the 
resort. 

Partnership 
Partners work together to achieve mutual 
benefit 

Engagement of community stakeholders by the 
committee towards a successful May Long 
Weekend to the benefit of all concerned. 

Recreation and 
Leisure 

Residents and visitors of all ages and 
abilities enjoy activities year round that 
encourage healthy living, learning and 
sense of community. 

Engagement of and/or communication to all 
resort sectors by the committee on recreational 
and leisure activities planned for the May Long 
Weekend. 

Visitor 
Experience 

Community members and organizations 
work collectively to ensure exceptional 
experiences that exceed visitor 
expectations. 

Collaboration among resort partners with the 
committee on strategies to enhance the visitor 
experience over the May Long Weekend. 

 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

The 2015 May Long Weekend Committee would work in consideration of related initiatives under 
the following policy frameworks: 

- The Corporate Plan 
- The Economic Partnership Initiative 
- The Customer Service Strategy 
- The Whistler RCMP Annual Policing Priorities 
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BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

There are no added budget implications anticipated in relation to the work of the committee, save 
the provision of staff hours to support the initiative. 

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION  

Staff is recommending that a Select Committee of Council be re-created for 2015 build into plans 
the lessons learned in 2014 and solicit new ideas to build positive capacity moving forward. 
Specifically to engage in dialogue and actions with our resort community stakeholders on the 
creation of comprehensive and considerate planning that will better position Whistler for success 
over the May Long Weekend period. 

The committee will meet on an as needed basis to engage stakeholders, discuss concepts and 
provide feedback into planning process for the resort on the upcoming May Long Weekend. The 
committee will report progress to Council through meeting minutes. The General Manager of 
Corporate and Community Services will present a summary of May Long Weekend plans to Council 
prior to event and a debrief post event of lessons learned. 

See Appendix “A” attached to this report for the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee Terms of 
Reference. 

SUMMARY 

Staff seek Council’s approval to create the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Norm McPhail 
General Manager  
Corporate and Community Services 



S E L E C T C O M M I T T E E O F C O U N C I L :
2015 May Long Weekend  

COMMITTEE

C o u n c i l A d o p t i o n : January 27, 2015

P U R P O S E  O F  C O M M I T T E E

The purpose of the Resort Municipality of Whistler’s (RMOW) 2015 May Long 
Weekend Committee is to assist council to create collaborative strategies that will enhance 
visitor experience, mitigate the impacts of elements which have historically tended to 
undermine a positive atmosphere in the resort at this time of year. 

C O M P O S I T I O N  

The Committee shall be composed of six members: 

I. One Whistler RCMP representative
II. One  Accommodation Sector representative

III. One Food and Beverage Sector representative
IV. One Member of Council
V. One Member-at-Large (preferably with Whistler Events and Festivals experience )
VI. General Manager of Corporate and Community Services

Initial members are to be appointed by council and any changes to the membership will require 
council approval. The Committee shall invite other stakeholders to meetings as required for 
discussions from time to time. The Chairperson will be the Council representative, with 

staff support from the Corporate and Community Services Division.
A quorum includes the majority of the members of the committee. Recommendations of the 

2015 May Long weekend Committee shall be made by a majority of members in attendance 
at a meeting, provided a quorum is present at that meeting. 

R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S

2015 May Long Weekend Committee will make recommendations relating to collaborative 
strategies that will enhance visitor experience, mitigate the impacts of elements which have 
historically tended to undermine a positive atmosphere in the resort at this time of year. 

The responsibilities of the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee Committee are to:

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

APPENDIX A





 Examine past proactices for current relevance.




Explore new alternatives to aid in prevention of past negative experiences
Report to Council on an as-needed basis and by providing minutes of
meetings to Council up to the May Long Weekend.

 Make a final report to Council post the 2015 May Long Weekend.

The General Manager of Corporate and Community Services shall be the chief point of 
contact for the 2015 May Long Weekend Committee

M E E T I N G S  

The 2015 May Long Weekend Committee will meet on an as-needed basis, as 
information and action items come forward and will work with Festival, Events and 
Animation thoroughout the planning process.

Meetings will be held in accordance with the Council Procedure Bylaw No. 1659, 2004. 

Engage TW, WB, C of C, Accommodation, Food and Beverage Sectors on 
pre-planning processes and collaboration for a successful May Long Weekend
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015  REPORT: 15-025 

FROM: CAO Office FILE: 8200.26 

SUBJECT: WHISTLER 2020 DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION – BUSINESS PLAN, 

JANUARY 2015 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the Chief Administrative Officer be endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council receive and endorse the Business Plan of Whistler 2020 Development Corporation, 
dated January 2015 and attached as Appendix A to Administrative Report 15-025. 
 
REFERENCES 

Appendix A – Whistler 2020 Development Corporation, Business Plan, January 2015  

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to present Council with the updated business plan of Whistler 2020 
Development Corporation (WDC) and seek endorsement of the updated plan. 

 

DISCUSSION  

Over its 10 year history, the mandate of WDC has largely been realized. The organization no 
longer retains paid staff to handle day to day operations. The volunteer Board of Directors not 
only provide governance for the organization, they are also responsible for handling inquiries, 
transactions and management for the remaining serviced parcels of land. 
 
The focus of WDC in the initial years (2005 – 2012) was to plan and build the development and 
to sell and deliver completed homes following the Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games over 
mid 2010 through to 2012. The primary objectives for WDC noted below were completed in 
2012: 

 Refit and refurbish of all Athletes’ Village housing and selling the inventory constructed 
for the 2010 Games. 

 Repay the $100 Million Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) debt that was secured to 
assist in financing the project. 

 
Looking ahead to the long term, a strategic approach for any future development and possible 
disposition of the remainder of the lands acquired in the Community Land Bank should be 
considered. Cheakamus Crossing occupies approximately 35 of 300 acres of the Community 
Land Bank leaving the balance of the land available in the future for further development for 
resident restricted housing and approved ancillary uses at the discretion of the RMOW. 
 
To this end, it is WDC’s intention to look to a new, forward thinking strategic plan that considers 
the assets and opportunities afforded by the residual lands in Cheakamus Crossing, while at 
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the same time, understanding and incorporating the Resort Municipality of Whistler’s (RMOW) 
financial, planning, and social objectives. 
 
While the principles of debt repayment and breakeven financial performance are important 
objectives for WDC and the Cheakamus Crossing development, there are much broader 
considerations. As noted in the business plan, BC Assessment values for Phase 2 lands and 
the Lower Cheakamus lands more than cover the anticipated budget shortfall ($1.945 million) 
outlined in the financial projections. These assets could, however, have a much higher value 
for the community if held for the future. 
 
With this in mind, WDC looked at three strategies for moving forward: 
 
1. Continue to sell development parcels and lots within the existing Cheakamus (Phase 1) 

community over the next 3-­‐5 years and reduce debt to the extent possible. Consider holding 
one or two development parcels for future resident-­‐restricted housing. Do not sell any of the 
Phase 2 or Lower Cheakamus lands to achieve debt retirement and do not invest in additional 
infrastructure to service lands for sale. 
 
2. Sell all serviced parcels and lots and invest in infrastructure in Phase 2 and/or Lower 
Cheakamus sufficient to generate land sales to retire debt completely 
 
3. Do not sell any remaining developed or undeveloped lands in Phase 1, Phase 2, or 
Lower Cheakamus, other than the parcels that are contracted for sale (value approximately 

$2.5 million) and the remaining six market single-­‐family lots. 
 
The business plan attached as Appendix A contemplates moving forward with the first strategy 
outlined above. 
 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

The business plan attached as Appendix A considers options that are available within the current 
Official Community Plan (1993) and existing zoning opportunities for the remaining WDC lands.  

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

Costs, including consulting and production of the report are not expected to exceed $15,000 and 
are funded by WDC. Decisions based on the information contained in the report will impact the 
timing and value of; future land sales, repayment of funds to RMOW, recognizing the opportunity 
cost of funds provided by RMOW (interest) and, future development costs and net realizable 
values.  

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION  

The master planning process commenced in 2005 and continued over a period of 16 months. As 
work progressed and became increasingly refined, opportunities were afforded to the community to 
learn about the evolving plan and provide input and commentary. At each of the four planning 
phases, community forums were arranged and information in graphic and written form was provided 
by way of visual displays and presentations. The WDC, RMOW and Whistler Housing Authority 
websites also provided an additional medium for dissemination of information to the public. 
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In December 2013, WDC provided a presentation at a regular Council meeting to advise of the 
context, principals and issues to be considered when updating the business plan. 

The business plan and recommendations are now being presented at a regular Council meeting.  

SUMMARY 

WDC has for the most part achieved its original objectives. It met its Games obligations by creating 
an extraordinary Athletes’ Village, a home away from home, for athletes from around the world 
during the 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games. It managed the transition from the 
Athletes’ Village to Cheakamus Crossing, a new and vibrant neighbourhood designed to help meet 
the resident‐restricted housing needs of Whistler’s emerging workforce. 
 
And now through this new Business Plan, WDC is continuing to move forward with the marketing 
and selling of the residual Cheakamus Crossing Phase 1 lands and lots with the intention of 
reducing to the greatest extent possible, the remaining amounts not yet paid back to RMOW. Any 
remaining amount will be more than offset by WDC’s investment in utility infrastructure that was 
turned over to RMOW and other community assets. 
 
The WDC Business Plan is intended to be an evolving, living document which is reviewed from time 
to time and amended as appropriate. The primary task going forward in the medium to long term is 
to properly manage the assets and consider opportunities that are aligned with the Business Plan 
and broader community principles and objectives. In this respect, the Business Plan will be revisited 
on an annual basis with Council to continue to ensure that it meets the needs of the community. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Ken Roggeman 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
for 
Mike Furey 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2014 REPORT: 15-019 

FROM: Corporate and Community Services FILE: 4700 

SUBJECT: COMMERCIAL VEHICLE PARKING PROGRAM  

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Corporate and Community Services be 
endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council direct staff to engage with Main Street merchants on the proposed changes to the 
Commercial Parking Program.  
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to advise Council of the proposed changes to the Commercial Parking 
program (Main Street).  
 

DISCUSSION  

There is an increased demand on existing commercial loading zones along Main Street.  Larger 
commercial vehicles are not able to utilize existing loading zones because smaller vehicles are 
parked blocking access to the area. This creates a delay or forces the larger vehicles to park in the 
roadway to unload their goods. Staff recommend that we create two different types of commercial 
loading zones, one for vehicles under twenty (20) feet and the second for vehicles over twenty (20) 
feet. Six (6) existing pay parking stalls will be converted to commercial loading zones for the smaller 
vehicles 

Staff will also initiate an application process to ensure that people are eligible for a commercial 
parking decal based on the following criteria:  

 vehicles are used for the collection or delivery of goods, wares, merchandise or other 
commodities in the ordinary course of business 

 insured for business use  

 valid business licence  

 no outstanding parking tickets 

Vehicles used by businesses for administrative or sales-related tasks are not eligible for the 
commercial parking program.  

A comprehensive communication plan and sign package has been developed. Staff will monitor the 
program and gather feedback to determine if the changes resolve the current issues.  
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WHISTLER 2020 ANALYSIS  

W2020 
Strategy 

TOWARD 
Descriptions of success that resolution 

moves us toward 
Comments  

Transportation 

Transportation preferences and options 
are developed, promoted and supported 
so that inter community mobility minimizes 
the negative impacts of traditional modes 
of travel.  

Additional commercial parking spaces will help 
facilitate quicker, safer deliveries and minimize 
illegal stopping on roadways 

Transportation 
The transportation system efficiently 
meets both the short and long-term needs 
of all users.  

Creating two types of commercial loading 
zones will meet the needs of small business 
operators and large delivery companies.  

 

W2020  
Strategy 

AWAY FROM 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves away from 

Mitigation Strategies  
and Comments 

 None  

 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

The changes to the commercial parking program are consistent with the powers delegated to the 
Municipal Engineer to establish commercial loading zones as set out in Section 17 (h) of Parking 
and Traffic Bylaw No. 1512, 2001.  

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

The advertising budget and sign changes will cost approximately $2000.  

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION  

2014 commercial parking decals holders to be notified by either mail or a hand delivered vehicle 
notice. Information will be posted on the Whistler.ca website and ads will run in the Pique for two 
consecutive weeks.  
 

SUMMARY 

The proposed changes to the Commercial Parking Program will add additional parking spaces to 
the inventory and provide better access to prime spaces for the larger vehicles.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sandra Smith  
SUPERVISOR OF BYLAW SERVICES  
for 
Norm McPhail 
GENERAL MANAGER OF CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015  REPORT: 15-024 

FROM:  Resort Experience FILE:  RZ1098, RZ1099,  

   Bylaw 2072  

SUBJECT: BLUEBERRY LAND USE CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO THE GROSS FLOOR 
AREA DEFINITION – 3506 AND 3510 FALCON CRESCENT 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Resort Experience be endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council consider giving first and second readings to Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw 
(Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015; and, 
 
That Council authorize the Corporate Officer to schedule a public hearing regarding Land Use 
Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015 and to advertise for same in the local 
newspapers; and further, 
 
That Council authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute any necessary legal documents 
for this application. 
 
 
REFERENCES 

Appendices:  “A” – Location Map 
 
Location: 3506 Falcon Crescent (RZ 1098) 
Legal Description: Strata Lot 2 D.L. 4757 Strata Plan LMS 3932 
Applicant: EVR Construction Inc. (Eric Von Rosen)  
Zoning: Blueberry Hill Land Use Contract (BB LUC) 
 
Location:  3510 Falcon Crescent (RZ 1099) 
Legal Description: Strata Lot 1 D.L. 4751 Strata Plan LMS 3932 
Applicant: EVR Construction Inc. (Eric Von Rosen) 
Zoning: Blueberry Hill Land Use Contract (BB LUC) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report presents a proposed land use contract amendment for the noted properties located at 
3506 and 3510 Falcon Crescent. The owners of the two properties have applied to amend the 
existing Blueberry Hill Land Use Contract (BB LUC) to replace the existing gross floor area 
definition with the definition in Zoning Bylaw No. 303, which provides for excluded floor areas with 
respect to basements, crawlspaces and void spaces.  
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DISCUSSION  

Background 
 
On May 12, 2012, Council amended the Zoning Bylaw to permit basement floor areas to be 
excluded from the gross floor area calculation for all detached and duplex unit building types in the 
Municipality. At that time, Council also supported applying similar floor area exclusions within 
detached and duplex dwelling building types that were not regulated by the Zoning Bylaw, but 
controlled by other land use regulations (i.e. land use contracts, covenants, etc.) through the 
appropriate process. This report outlines the process to amend the existing BB LUC for these two 
properties consistent with this direction.  
 
The subject parcels located at 3506 and 3510 Falcon Crescent, as shown on the location map in 
Appendix A, are currently vacant properties. In both of these cases, design concepts could 
incorporate an excluded basement floor area that would comply with the Zoning Bylaw No. 303 
definition for exclusion from the GFA calculation. Therefore, the applicants have applied on behalf 
of the owners to have the GFA definition in the BB LUC amended so that they can prepare design 
concepts that would incorporate excluded basement floor area.  
 
Land Use Contract Amendment Proposal 
 
The current BB LUC definition for gross floor area (GFA) is as follows:  
 
   “gross floor area means the total floor area of all buildings on a parcel or land within the 
boundaries of a strata plan measured to the outer limits of a building including all areas giving 
access thereto such as corridors, hallways, landings, foyers, staircases, stairwells, enclosed 
balconies and mezzanines, enclosed porches or verandas, but excluding auxiliary parking, 
unenclosed swimming pools, hot tubs or saunas or sundecks, elevators or ventilating 
machinery, unenclosed stairwells, balconies, porches, canopies, sun shades, and any other 
similar features to the extent which such features are permitted in the front, side, and rear 
setbacks under the Zoning By-law of the Municipality;…” (Emphasis added by report author) 
 
This means, properties with detached and duplex dwellings regulated by the BB LUC are controlled 
by this GFA definition and therefore the basement floor area exclusion from the GFA calculation 
under Zoning Bylaw No. 303 is not permitted. 
 
The proposed Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015 replaces the 
current land use contract GFA definition for the subject properties with the following: 
 

“gross floor area” means gross floor area as defined in Resort Municipality of Whistler 
Zoning and Parking Bylaw No. 303 as amended from time to time, excluding areas specified 
in subsection 25.1 of Section 5 of the bylaw as amended from time to time.” 

 
This amendment would permit these BB LUC properties to exclude floor areas from the GFA 
calculation where the floor area is consistent with the Zoning Bylaw No. 303 definition, including 
basements, void spaces and crawlspaces. 
 
Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015 takes the same approach as 
the zoning amendment bylaw adopted by Council on January 13, 2015 for five other detached 
dwelling parcels in the BB LUC.  
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WHISTLER 2020 ANALYSIS  

Overall, the proposal supports the Whistler 2020 strategies of built environment, economic and 
finance. 
 

W2020 
Strategy 

TOWARD 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves us toward 

Comments  

Built 

Environment 

Limits to growth are understood and 
respected. The building modifications are consistent 

with Council direction for permitting 
excluded basement gross floor area for 
detached and duplex dwelling unit types. 

Building design, construction and 
operation is characterized by 
efficiency, durability and flexibility for 
changing and long-term uses. 

Economic 

Locally owned and operated 
businesses thrive and are encouraged 
as an essential component of a 
healthy business mix. 

Many local contractors, designers and 
suppliers benefit from being able to assist 
property owners to improve their homes. 

Finance 

Financial principles, practices and 
tools employed by the municipality 
effectively and efficiently balance its 
costs and expenditures. 

The fee and rate schedule is based on a 
cost recovery principle so that the applicant 
pays for the cost of processing the 
application. 

 

W2020 
Strategy 

AWAY FROM 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves away from 

Mitigation Strategies  
and Comments 

 None.  

 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

Blueberry Hill Land Use Contract 
 
All other BB LUC regulations for these properties concerning building setbacks, height, site 
coverage, permitted uses, parking requirements, etc. remain in effect. It is the responsibility of the 
property owners for each property to ensure their proposals comply with these regulations and 
requirements. 
 
Other registered covenants on title 
 
All registered building schemes, strata bylaws, statutory rights of way, easements, etc. on the 
properties remain in effect. It is the responsibility of the property owners for each property to ensure 
their proposals comply with all other registered requirements. 
 
Official Community Plan 
 
Whistler’s Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 1021, 1993 (1993 OCP), outlines specific items for 
review with respect to rezoning applications. The proposed land use contract amendment to amend 
the gross floor area definition is similar to a rezoning application. A brief summary follows in Table 
1. The proposal is consistent with all applicable policies of the OCP. 
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OCP Criteria 

 
Comments 

Proposals that increase the bed unit capacity of the 
municipality will only be considered if the 
development: provides clear and substantial benefits 
to the resort; is supported by the community in the 
opinion of Council; will not cause unacceptable 
impacts on the community, resort or environment; and 
meets all applicable criteria set out in the OCP.  

The proposal does not increase the bed unit capacity. 

Capable of being served by Municipal water, sewer 
and fire protection services.  

Yes. 

Accessible via the local road system. Yes. 

Comply with Environmental Impact Assessment 
process in Schedule O.  

Per Schedule M and N of the OCP, the site does not have 
any environmental constraints or development constraints.  

Traffic volumes and patterns on Highway 99 and the 
local road system. 

The proposal does not increase the number of units or the 
parking requirements. 

Overall patterns of development of the community and 
resort 

The lands are identified on Schedule B – Development 
Areas and per Policy 4.1.1, the lands outlined in Schedule 
B are designated for development of accommodation.  

Municipal Finance Works and service charges will be payable.  

Views and Scenery Building height and setbacks would not change from that 
permitted under existing zoning. 

Existing Community and Recreation Facilities Not applicable. 

Employee Housing Employee works and service charges are not payable.  

Community greenhouse gas emissions These are approved lots as part of the subdivision within 
the LUC. Any projected emissions increase for this minor 
amount of development does not require incorporation of 
extraordinary measures to minimize and/or mitigate any 
projected emissions other than adherence to the British 
Columbia Building Code. 

Heritage Resources Not applicable.  

No development will be approved if it would negatively 
impact a designated Municipal trail system, recreation 
area, or open space. 

No impact.  

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

Proposed renovations or new construction will be subject to building permit fees at time of building 
permit application. 
 
All costs associated with staff time for the land use contract amendment application, public hearing, 
notices, and legal fees will be paid by the applicant and all fees will be required to be paid in full as 
a condition of adoption of the land use contract amendment bylaw. 

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION  

An information sign is posted on each subject property to allow for public inquires about the 
applications. A public hearing, which is subject to public notice requirements, is required as part of 
the statutory process for bylaw consideration and adoption. 
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SUMMARY 

This report presents Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015 for two 
land use contract amendment applications for properties located at 3506 and 3510 Falcon 
Crescent. The land use contract amendment will create a revised definition for gross floor area for 
the subject properties to permit excluded basement floor areas from the gross floor area calculation 
as permitted in other detached and duplex buildings regulated by the Zoning Bylaw No. 303. The 
report recommends Council consider first and second readings and scheduling of a public hearing. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brook McCrady 
PLANNING ANALYST 
for 
Jan Jansen 
RESORT EXPERIENCE GENERAL MANAGER 



Location Map

Blueberry Land Use Contract Amendment Application for Two Vacant Lots

RZ 1099
3510

RZ 1098
3506

RZ 1099     
3510 Falcon 

Crescent

RZ 1098
3506 Falcon 

Crescent
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015                                  REPORT: 15-020 

FROM: Corporate and Community Services         FILE: 7737.1 

SUBJECT: BYLAW AMENDMENTS FOR THE WINTER USE OF LOST LAKE CROSS 

COUNTRY AND SNOWSHOE TRAILS 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Managers of Corporate and Community Service be 
approved. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council consider giving first, second and third reading to Park Use Amendment Bylaw (Cross 
Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2074, 2015; and further, 
 
That Council consider giving first, second and third reading to Municipal Ticket Information System 
Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2075, 2015. 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to present proposed amendments to the Parks Use Bylaw 
1526, 2002 with regard to use of the Lost Lake Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails during 
periods of winter operation, and to add prohibited activities to the schedule of bylaws that can 
be enforced utilizing the MTI ticketing system via an amendment to Municipal Ticket 
Information System Bylaw No 1719, 2005. 
   
DISCUSSION 

The Lost Lake Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails are the responsibility of the Manager of 
Recreation reporting to the General Manager of Corporate and Community Services. In 1984, 
the RMOW began the operation of groomed for fee trails for cross country skiing.  There is a 
need to set parameters around the use of this park facility for the safety and enjoyment of all 
cross country skiers and snowshoers. Specifically the prohibition of walking, hiking, running, 
cycling, and snowmobiling in the ski area including all associated trails within Lost Lake Park 
and on both the Nicklaus North and Chateau Golf Courses.  
 
Walking and free cross country skiing is available for the public in the winter in a variety of 
other areas including the multiuse trails between Nicklaus North and Whistler Secondary 
School, as well as between Meadow Park and Rainbow Park which are groomed three times a 
week.  Also, most of the valley trail network in the valley is plowed during the winter making it 
suitable for walking, running and cycling. Walkers, runners and cyclist that show up at the 
entrance to main entrance to Lost Lake Park (i.e. Lost Lake PassivHaus) can use the new 
relatively new trail that connects to White Gold and then back onto the plowed valley trail into 
Whistler village.  
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This amendment will create the necessity to amend the Ticketing Bylaw. The proposed 
additions to the MTI schedule are consistent with the existing fee structure. 

 

 
Proposed Amendment to Parks Use Bylaw 1526, 2002 
 

The proposed amendment is an addition to section 24 “Activities” of sub section “f” 
“from the beginning and until the end of winter operations on Lost Lake Cross Country 
and Snowshoe Trails, the following is prohibited: 

 walking, hiking and running 
 cycling 
 snowmobiling 
 dogs 

 
Proposed Amendment to Municipal Ticket Information System Bylaw No 1719, 2005  
 

The proposed amendment is an addition to schedule B7 
  

DESIGNATED EXPRESSION SECTION FINE 

Participating in the following 
prohibited activities: walking, 
running, hiking, cycling, 
snowmobiling  

24 f $100.00 

 
The proposed Bylaws are consistent with the goals and objectives of Whistler 2020 and the 
Official Community Plan 

 

WHISTLER 2020 ANALYSIS  

W2020 
Strategy 

TOWARD 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves us toward 

Comments  

Visitor Experience Community members and organizations 
work collectively to ensure exceptional 
experiences that exceed visitor 
expectations 

Visitors expect a high quality “Nordic 
experience” when cross country skiing or 
snowshoeing on the Lost Lake winter trail 
network. 

Recreation and 
Leisure 

All experiences reflect an appropriate 
balance between adventure, challenge 
and risk, and exist within the comfortable 
carrying capacity of the amenity 

The Lost Lake Trail network consist of relatively 
narrow cross country and snowshoe trails which 
makes it difficult to allow for other uses during 
the winter months without significantly effecting 
a skier’s or snowshoer’s experience and safety. 

Recreation and 
Leisure 

All stakeholders use a collaborative and 
comprehensive approach to developing 
amenities and offerings, and to resolving 
user conflicts.  
 

There are various other areas in the valley 
suitable for walking, hiking and running (i.e. 
plowed valley trail sections). Snowmobiling is 
permitted in various areas in the sea to sky 
corridor. Cycling (particularly “Fat biking”) can 
be done in other areas in the valley such as the 
Whistler Interpretive or Emerald forest areas. 
Whistler Olympic Park is presently promoting 
“Fat Biking” at their Nordic venue as a pilot 
program. 
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Economic 1. Whistler has a diversified and 
year- round tourism economy 
2. Whistler proactively seizes 
economic opportunities that are 
compatible with tourism, and 
effectively adapts to changing 
external conditions. 

Cross Country skiing and snowshoeing add to 
the diversity of recreational offerings in Whistler. 

 

W2020 
Strategy 

AWAY FROM 
Descriptions of success that 
resolution moves away from 

Mitigation Strategies  
and Comments 

n/a n/a n/a 

 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

Official Community Plan 

 
Objective/Policy Comments 

Policy 5.5.1.1. Support increased cultural, arts, 
entertainment, events, sport tourism and health and 
wellness opportunities that diversify our tourism-based 
economy. 

Cross Country and snowshoeing are key winter 
activities for the Resort community. 

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

The amendment in the Parks Use Bylaw will necessitate the need to produce signage adequate to 
ensure the users are aware of the Bylaw and its implications estimated to cost approximately 
$500. 
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION  

The Recreation Leisure Advisory Committee gave unanimous support to the amendments in 
the form of a resolution at their meeting on November 13, 2014. 
 

SUMMARY 

Additions to Park Use Bylaw No. 1526, 2002 are necessary to reduce the potential for user conflicts 
and increase the safety on Lost Lake Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails.  Additions to Municipal 
Ticket Information System Bylaw No. 1719, 2005 will provide the authority to Bylaw staff to enforce 
the restrictions.    
 
Approving the proposed amendments will be in keeping with the goal of providing a high quality and 
safe cross country skiing and snowshoeing experience for residents, second home owners and 
visitors using the Lost Lake Cross Country and Snowshoe trail network. 
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Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Roger Weetman 
Manager of Recreation 
for 
Norm McPhail 
General Manager of Corporate and Community Services 
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015 REPORT: 15-021 

FROM: Community and Corporate Services FILE: Vault 

SUBJECT: WHISTLER.COM SYSTEMS INC. 2013 AND 2014 ANNUAL FILING 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Community and Corporate Services be 
endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting assembled, hereby resolve 
that the Municipality, as one of the shareholders of Whistler.com Systems Inc., pass the consent 
resolutions of the shareholders of Whistler.com Systems Inc., copies of which are attached to this 
report No.15-021 as Appendix A and D, and that the Mayor and Corporate Officer execute and 
deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of the Municipality. 
 
REFERENCES 

Appendix A – Whistler.com Systems Inc. -  2013 Shareholders’ Resolutions 
Appendix B – Whistler.com Systems Inc. - Financial Statements ending June 30, 2013 

(CONFIDENTIAL) 
Appendix C – Whistler.com Systems Inc. – 2013 Directors’ Consent Resolution 
Appendix D – Whistler.com Systems Inc. -  2014 Shareholders’ Resolutions 
Appendix E – Whistler.com Systems Inc. - Financial Statements ending June 30, 2014 

(CONFIDENTIAL) 
Appendix F – Whistler.com Systems Inc. – 2014 Directors’ Consent Resolution 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign 
the annual Shareholder’s Resolutions of Whistler.com Systems Inc. 

 

DISCUSSION  

Whistler.com Systems Inc. 
The filing of the 2013 and 2014 Annual Report of Whistler.com Systems Inc. is now due for filing 
with the Registrar of Companies. 
 
The Shareholders’ resolutions for the 2013 Annual Report include: 
 

1. Selecting December 11, 2013 as the annual reference date for the Company; 
 

2. Acknowledging the receipt of the financial statements of the Company for its last completed 
fiscal year;  
 

3. Waiving the appointment of  an Auditor for the Company: 
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The company may consent in writing to waive the appointment of an auditor. Although the 
Company does not appoint an Auditor, the Financial Statements will be prepared for the 
fiscal year; 
 

4. Appointing Barrett Fisher, Mike Furey and Duane Hepditch as Directors of the Company as 
of December 11, 2013. 

 
The Shareholders’ resolutions for the 2014 Annual Report include: 
 

1. Selecting December 11, 2014 as the annual reference date for the Company; 
 

2. Acknowledging the receipt of the financial statements of the Company for its last completed 
fiscal year;  
 

3. Waiving the appointment of  an Auditor for the Company: 
The company may consent in writing to waive the appointment of an auditor. Although the 
Company does not appoint an Auditor, the Financial Statements will be prepared for the 
fiscal year; 
 

4. Appointing Barrett Fisher, Mike Furey and Duane Hepditch as Directors of the Company as 
of December 11, 2014. 
 

 

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

Pursuant to Section 182 of the Business Corporations Act, the company may consent in writing to 
all of the business required at the annual meeting of the company. 
 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Business Corporation Act, the company may consent in writing to 
waive the appointment of an auditor, and under Section 182 the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting. 

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

There will be minimal costs incurred for the filing of documents with the Registrar of Companies. 

SUMMARY 

The 2013 and 2014 Annual Report of Whistler.com Systems Inc. are now due to be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies. This report seeks the approval of the Shareholders’ Resolutions of 
Whistler.com Systems Inc. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nikki Best  
LEGISLATIVE SERVICES COORDINATOR 
for 
Shannon Story  
COPORATE OFFICER 
for 
Norm McPhail 
GENERAL MANAGER, CORPORATE & COMMMUNITY SERVICES 
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015 REPORT: 15-023 

FROM: Community and Corporate Services FILE: Vault 

SUBJECT: TOURDEX.COM SYSTEMS INC. 2013 AND 2014 ANNUAL FILING 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Community and Corporate Services be 
endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler in open meeting assembled, hereby resolve 
that the Municipality, as one of the shareholders of Tourdex.com Systems Inc., pass the consent 
resolutions of the shareholders of Tourdex.com Systems Inc., a copies of which are attached to 
Administrative Report No.15-023 as Appendix A and D, and that the Mayor and Corporate Officer 
execute and deliver the attached resolutions on behalf of the Municipality. 
 
REFERENCES 

Appendix A – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. -  2013 Shareholders’ Resolutions 
Appendix B – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. - Financial Statements ending June 30, 2013 

(CONFIDENTIAL) 
Appendix C – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. – 2013 Directors’ Consent Resolution 
Appendix D – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. -  2014 Shareholders’ Resolutions 
Appendix E – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. - Financial Statements ending June 30, 2014 

(CONFIDENTIAL) 
Appendix F – Tourdex.com Systems Inc. – 2014 Directors’ Consent Resolution 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign 
the 2013 and 2014 annual Shareholders’ Resolutions of Tourdex.com Systems Inc. 

 

DISCUSSION  

 
The filing of the 2013 and 2014 Annual Report of Tourdex.com Systems Inc. is now due for filing 
with the Registrar of Companies. 
 
The Shareholders’ resolutions for the 2013 Annual Report include: 
 

1. Selecting December 31, 2013 as the annual reference date for the Company; 
 

2. Acknowledging the receipt of the financial statements of the Company for its last completed 
fiscal year;  
 

3. Waiving the appointment of  an Auditor for the Company: 
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The company may consent in writing to waive the appointment of an auditor. Although the 
Company does not appoint an Auditor, the Financial Statements will be prepared for the 
fiscal year; 
 

4. Appointing Barrett Fisher, Mike Furey and Duane Hepditch as Directors of the Company as 
at December 31, 2013. 

 
The Shareholders’ resolutions for the 2014 Annual Report include: 
 

1. Selecting December 31, 2014 as the annual reference date for the Company; 
 

2. Acknowledging the receipt of the financial statements of the Company for its last completed 
fiscal year;  
 

3. Waiving the appointment of  an Auditor for the Company: 
The company may consent in writing to waive the appointment of an auditor. Although the 
Company does not appoint an Auditor, the Financial Statements will be prepared for the 
fiscal year; 
 

4. Appointing Barrett Fisher, Mike Furey and Duane Hepditch as Directors of the Company as 
at December 31, 2014. 

 
 

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

Pursuant to Section 182 of the Business Corporations Act, the company may consent in writing to 
all of the business required at the annual meeting of the company. 
 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Business Corporation Act, the company may consent in writing to 
waive the appointment of an auditor, and under Section 182 the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting. 

 

BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

There will be minimal costs incurred for the filing of documents with the Registrar of Companies. 

SUMMARY 

The 2013 and 2014 Annual Report of Tourdex.com Systems Inc. are now due to be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies. This report seeks the approval of the Shareholders’ Resolutions of 
Tourdex.com Systems Inc. and Tourdex.com Systems Inc. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nikki Best  
LEGISLATIVE SERVICES COORDINATOR 
for 
Shannon Story  
COPORATE OFFICER 
for 
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Norm McPhail 
GENERAL MANAGER, CORPORATE & COMMMUNITY SERVICES 
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PRESENTED: January 27, 2015 REPORT: 15-022 

FROM: Corporate & Community Services FILE: Vault 

SUBJECT: WHISTLER HOUSING AUTHORITY LTD. 2014 ANNUAL FILING 

 
COMMENT/RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

That the recommendation of the General Manager of Corporate & Community Services be 
endorsed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
WHEREAS the Resort Municipality of Whistler is the sole shareholder of Whistler Housing Authority 
Ltd. (“the Company”); 
 
PURSUANT to the Articles of the Company, the following resolutions are passed as resolutions of 
the sole shareholder of the Company, duly consented to in writing by all of the directors of the sole 
shareholder of the Company. 
 
That Council waive the requirement of holding an Annual General Meeting of the shareholder of 
Whistler Housing Authority Ltd., deemed to be held on December 7, 2014; 
 
That Council accept the attached Financial Statements of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. for the 
year ending December 31, 2013;  
 
That Council resolve that the following persons be and are hereby appointed directors of the 
Company, so that the Board of Directors is therefore composed of the following seven persons, to 
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting or until their successors are elected or appointed: 
 

Jonathan Decaigny 
Sharon Fugman 
Brian Good 
Michael Hutchison 
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden 
Duane Jackson 
John Grills; 

 
That Council endorse the appointment of BDO Canada as auditor of Whistler Housing Authority 
Ltd. for the current fiscal year; and further 
 
That the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the annual Shareholders’ Resolutions 
as attached (in lieu of the 2014 Annual General Meeting) of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
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REFERENCES 

Appendix A – Shareholders’ Resolutions - Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
Appendix B - Financial Statements - Whistler Housing Authority Ltd., ending December 31,                      

2013  
Appendix C – Directors’ Consent Resolution - Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval for the Mayor & Corporate Officer to 
execute the annual Shareholders’ Resolutions of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. (“the Company”).    
 

DISCUSSION  

The filing of the 2014 Annual Report of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. with the Registrar of 
Companies is now due. 
 
The Shareholders’ Resolutions for the 2014 Annual Report include: 
 

1. The appointment of Directors, namely: 
  

 Jonathan Decaigny, Community Member-at-Large 
 Brian Good, Community Member-at-Large 
 Michael Hutchison, Community Member-at-Large 
 Sharon Fugman, RMOW Representative 
 Duane Jackson, RMOW Councillor 
 Nancy Wilhelm-Morden, RMOW Councillor 
 John Grills, RMOW Councillor 
     

2. The appointment of an Auditor: 
 

Appointment of BDO Canada as auditor for the company. 
 

3. Waive the holding of the 2014 Annual General Meeting: 
 
The holding of the Annual General Meeting may be waived by a unanimous resolution of 
the shareholder of the Company. The Company’s annual reference date that would have 
been deemed to be appropriate for the holding of the Annual General Meeting is 
December 7, 2014. 

 
4. Financial Statements: 

 
The Financial Statements of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. is attached to this report for 
acceptance by Council. 

 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

Pursuant to Section 182 of the Business Corporations Act, the shareholder may consent to all the 
business required to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.   
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BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS 

There will be minimal costs incurred for the filing of the documents with the Registrar of Companies. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The 2014 Annual Report of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. must be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies. This report seeks Councils approval of the Shareholders’ Resolutions of Whistler 
Housing Authority Ltd. as attached to this report. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nikki Best 
LEGISLATIVE SERVICES COORDINATOR 
for 
Shannon Story 
CORPORATE OFFICER 
for 
Norm McPhail 
GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE & COMMUNITY SERVICES 



 

  
 Certificate of Incorporation 
 No. BC0810519 
 

 WHISTLER HOUSING AUTHORITY LTD. 
 (the "Company") 
 
 SHAREHOLDER’S RESOLUTIONS 
 
WHEREAS the Resort Municipality of Whistler is the sole shareholder of Whistler Housing Authority 
Ltd.; 
 
PURSUANT to the Articles of the Company, the following resolutions are passed as resolutions of the 
sole shareholder of the Company, duly consented to in writing by all of the directors of the sole 
shareholder of the Company. 
 
That Council waive the requirement of holding an Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder of 
Whistler Housing Authority Ltd., deemed to be held on December 7, 2014. 
 
That Council accept the attached Financial Statements of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. for the year 
ending December 31, 2013. 
 
That Council resolve that the following persons be and are hereby appointed directors of the 
Company, so that the Board of Directors is therefore composed of the following seven persons, to 
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting or until their successors are elected or appointed. 
 
  Jonathan Decaigny   Duane Jackson  
  Brian Good     Nancy Wilhelm-Morden  
  Michael Hutchinson   John Grills 
  Sharon Fugman 
     
       
That Council endorse the appointment of BDO Canada as auditor of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
for the current fiscal year; and further 
 
That the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the annual Shareholder’s Resolutions as 
attached (in lieu of the 2014 Annual General Meeting) of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
   
Signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer of the Resort Municipality of Whistler on the ___ day of  
 __ _____, 2015. 

 
 
______________________________  
Mayor, Nancy Wilhelm-Morden 
 
______________________________ 
Corporate Officer, Shannon Story 
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 Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the statements
of operations, changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. as at December 31, 2013 and the results of its
operations, changes in net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Whistler, British Columbia
February 24, 2014
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31 2013 2012 
(restated -

Note 9) 

Financial Assets 
Cash (Note 1) $ , 693,973 S 560,430 
Short term investments (Note 2) 998,799 985,091 
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 46,180 45,501 
Building deposit receivable (Note 9) 107,200 

1,738,952 1,698,222 

Liabi lities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 182,347 141,731 
Tenant deposits (Note 1) 130,152 122,739 

, Long term debt (Note 5) 11,371,351 12,048,089 

11,683,850 12,312,559 

Net debt (9,944,898) (10,614,337) 

Non-financial assets 
Tangible capital assets (Note 4) 20,664,144 21,408,041 
Prepaid expenses 206,156 208,598 

20,870,300. 21,616,639 

Accumulated surelus ~Note 6~ $10,925,402 S 11,002,302 

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors: 

/h.lUlJ&J;Wt~~ 
/~ r 

df~ 
Director 

Director 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Statement of Operations

Budget
For the year ended December 31 2013 2013 2012

(Note 8) (restated -
Note 9)

Revenues
Rental revenue $ 2,731,978 $ 2,787,295 $ 2,719,875
Waitlist fee revenue 29,000 8,012 26,181
Interest revenue 8,000 28,719 16,990
Other income - - 6,826

2,768,978 2,824,026 2,769,872

Rental Expenses
Bank charges and interest 2,475 2,765 2,082
Insurance 83,848 90,051 75,783
Interest on long term debt 575,777 571,943 731,330
Management fees 145,500 143,943 141,328
Professional fees 20,332 25,468 16,185
Property taxes and fees  (Note 7) 312,324 316,284 310,257
Recycling and garbage removal 52,132 46,320 48,087
Repairs and maintenance 267,045 274,444 254,775
Snow removal 42,945 29,273 32,062
Utilities 113,724 110,506 108,900

1,616,102 1,610,997 1,720,789
Capital Expenses

Amortization - 743,897 775,090
Capital reserve expenses 397,692 300,133 127,189

397,692 1,044,030 902,279
Administrative Expenses

Office expenses (Schedule 2) 259,400 245,899 243,276

Total Expenses 2,273,194 2,900,926 2,866,344

Annual Surplus (deficiency) 495,784 (76,900) (96,472)

Accumulated surplus,
 beginning of year 11,002,302 11,002,302 11,098,774

Accumulated surplus, end of year $11,498,086 $10,925,402 $ 11,002,302

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Net Debt

Budget
For the year ended December 31 2013 2013 2012

(Note 8) (restated -
Note 9)

Annual surplus (deficiency) $ 495,784 $ (76,900) $ (96,472)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets - - -
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 743,897 775,090
Change in prepaid expenses - 2,442 (4,310)

- - -

Change in net debt 495,784 669,439 674,308
Net debt, beginning of year (10,614,337) (10,614,337) (11,288,645)

Net debt, end of year $(10,118,553) $ (9,944,898) $ (10,614,337)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2013 2012

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (76,900) $ (96,472)

Items not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 743,897 775,090

666,997 678,618

Changes in non-cash working capital balances:
Accounts receivable (679) (7,004)
Prepaid expenses 2,442 (4,310)
Building deposit receivable 107,200 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 40,616 (14,811)
Tenant deposits 7,413 672

823,989 653,165

Investing activities
Sale (purchase) of short term investments (13,708) (200,799)

Financing activities
Proceeds (repayment) of long term debt (676,738) (428,591)

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 133,543 23,775

Cash, beginning of year 560,430 536,655

Cash, end of year $ 693,973 $ 560,430

Supplemental Information

Interest Paid $ 574,673 $ 731,330

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2013

Management's 
Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements The financial statements of the Whistler Housing Authority Ltd. (the

"WHA") are the responsibility of management. They have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Nature of Business WHA was incorporated in 1988 to construct and operate affordable
housing units in the Resort Municipality of Whistler (the "RMOW") and
facilitate the resale of restricted housing units. WHA is wholly owned
by the Resort Municipality of Whistler.

WHA owns 202 rental units in the Whistler area and manages another
29 units owned by the Whistler Valley Housing Society and the
RMOW.

Financial Instruments WHA's financial instruments consist of cash, short term investments,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, tenant
deposits, and long-term debt. Unless otherwise indicated, it is
management's opinion that WHA is not exposed to any significant
interest, credit or currency risks arising from these financial
instruments. 

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements.  Significant items
subject to such estimates and assumptions include the useful life of
property and equipment and provision for uncollectible receivables.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and may impact the
results of future periods.

Revenue Rental revenue is recognized monthly when received or receivable,
on the first day of each month for all occupied units, as per rental
agreements.

Interest revenue is recognized as earned.

Waitlist revenue is non refundable and is recognized when proceeds
are received.
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2013

Government Transfers Government transfers which include government grants are
recognized in the financial statements in the period in which events
giving rise to the transfers occur, providing the transfers are
authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable
estimates of the amount can be made. 

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Costs includes all costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of the tangible capital asset including
transportation costs, installation costs, design and engineering fees,
legal fees and site preparation costs.

Buildings are recorded at cost, including interest capitalized on
construction, and amortized at 4% on a diminishing balance.

Equipment and furniture and fixtures are recorded at cost and
amortized at 20% on a diminishing balance.

The half year rule applies in the year of initial purchase.

Discretionary reserves WHA allocates its accumulated surplus to reserve accounts for
capital items, projects, maintenance and operating as directed by
the board of directors (Note 6). Expenses for each reserve account
are recorded separately. 

Income Taxes WHA is wholly owned by the Resort Municipality of Whistler, and as
such, is not subject to income tax per section 149(1)(d.5) of the
income tax act.
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

1. Cash

Cash includes WHA's bank accounts and any money market instruments that have maturities
of 90 days or less.

WHA's bank accounts are held at two financial institutions and earn interest at prevailing
market rates. Included in this amount is $126,137 of tenant deposits held in a separate
interest bearing account.

2. Short term Investments

Short term Investments include two term deposits that are held at separate financial
institutions. The amounts of the investments are $279,461 and $719,338 earning 2.0% and
1.45% respectively. Both of these term deposits mature in 2014. They are both recorded at
cost plus accrued interest to date.

3. Accounts receivable

2013 2012

GST/HST Rebates $ 39,727 $ 39,596
Tenant receivables 4,307 2,140
Other 2,146 3,765

46,180 45,501
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

4. Tangible Capital Assets

Open Net Close Net
   Book Value Additions Disposals Amortization Book Value

Land $ 2,829,968 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,829,968
Buildings 18,573,240 - - (742,930) 17,830,310
Equipment 4,833 - - (967) 3,866

$ 21,408,041 $ - $ - $ (743,897) $20,664,144

Net book value at December 31, 2013 consists of:

    Accumulated          Net Book
Cost Amortization               Value

Land $ 2,829,968 $ - $ 2,829,968
Buildings 26,194,441 (8,364,131) 17,830,310
Equipment 31,661 (27,795) 3,866

$ 29,056,070 $ (8,391,926) $20,664,144

Net book value for the comparative period, December 31, 2012, consists of:

     Accumulated          Net Book
Cost Amortization               Value

Land $ 2,829,968 $ - $ 2,829,968
Buildings 26,194,441 (7,621,201) 18,573,240
Equipment 31,661 (26,828) 4,833

$ 29,056,070 $ (7,648,029) $21,408,041

9



Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

5. Long Term Debt

2013 2012

Addenda Capital Inc. Mortgage on Lorimer property, 
interest at 4.12%, repayable at $9,126 per month,
due March 1, 2015 $ 712,268 $ 790,935

Royal Bank Term Loan on Dave Murray Place property, 
interest at 3.95%, repayable at $32,845 per month,
due July 5, 2017 2,890,969 3,165,895

Royal Bank Mortgage on 1060 Legacy Way property, 
interest at 3.886%, repayable at $21,107 per month,
due October 1, 2020 3,734,757 3,841,820

Sunlife Assurance Company of Canada Mortgage on 
Seppo's property, interest at 6.8%,repayable at $41,206 
per month, due October 1, 2025 4,033,357 4,249,439

$11,371,351 $ 12,048,089

The mortgages are secured by a first charge on the land and buildings for each loan, a
General Security Agreement and an assignment of rents. 

Mortgage payments due in the next five years are as follows:

Interest      Principal                 Total

2014 $ 542,110 $ 709,300 $ 1,251,410
2015 489,094 1,289,493 1,778,587
2016 449,182 692,713 1,141,895
2017 378,744 2,408,112 2,786,856
2018 316,103 431,652 747,755
Thereafter 888,426 5,840,081 6,728,507

$ 3,063,659 $ 11,371,351 $14,435,010

6. Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated Surplus consists of: 

2013 2012

Share Capital $ 1 $ 1
Invested in tangible capital assets 9,292,793 9,359,952
Discretionary reserves (Schedule 1) 608,905 772,374
Unrestricted 1,023,703 869,975

$10,925,402 $ 11,002,302
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

7. Related Party Transactions

WHA is wholly owned by the Resort Municipality of Whistler and has the following
transactions with them:

Property taxes

WHA pays taxes on the rental properties it owns.

Related party transactions for the year include:

2013 2012

Expenses
Property tax expense $ 316,284 $ 310,257

During the year, the Resort Municipality of Whistler refunded $107,200 in building permit
damage deposits to WHA as described in Note 9. 

8. Budget

Budget amounts represent the 2013 Financial Plan approved by the board on November 26,
2012 as adjusted to a "PSAB basis" in order to match the required presentation in the
Statement of Operations and the Statement of Changes in Net Debt. This adjustment is
necessary because certain revenue items in the financial plan are not considered revenues
and expenditures for PSAB purposes. Certain budget figures in these financial statements are
categorized by management differently than presented in the 2013 Financial Plan to ensure
consistency with the classifications of actual results presented in these financial statements.

The following shows how these two different bases are reconciled:

2013

Excess of revenue over expenditure per budget $ (132,550)
HST Rebate (47,300)
Debt principal repayments 675,634

Annual surplus on a PSAB basis 495,784

Change in net financial assets $ 495,784
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

9. Prior Period Adjustment

The prior year comparative amounts have been restated retroactively for refundable
building permit damage deposits paid which were previously recorded as part of the capital
cost of three of WHA's buildings in error and subject to annual amortization. The deposits
paid were refunded to the WHA in 2013.

The effect of the restatement on the financial statements is disclosed below:

Tangible capital assets (Statement of Financial Position)

There is a decrease in the cost of tangible capital assets in the amount of $107,200 and a
decrease in accumulated amortization in the amount of $42,543, resulting in a net decrease
in tangible capital assets of $64,657.

Building deposit receivable (Statement of Financial Position)

Building deposit receivable has increased in the amount of $107,200.

Amortization (Statement of Operations)

Amortization expense for 2012 has decreased by $2,694 as a result of the reduction to the
net book value of tangible capital assets.

The impact of these changes on previously reported balances are:

  2012 2012 
As previously stated Adjustment Restated

Statement of Financial Position:

Tangible capital assets (net of
accumulated amortization) 21,472,698 (64,657) 21,408,041

Building deposit receivable - 107,200 107,200

Statement of Operations:

Amortization expense 777,784 (2,694) 775,090

Annual surplus (deficiency) (99,166) 2,694 (96,472)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 11,058,925 39,849 11,098,774

Accumulated surplus, end of year 10,959,759 42,543 11,002,302

Statement of Changes in Net debt:

Net debt, beginning of year 11,395,845 (107,200) 11,288,645

Net debt, end of year 10,721,537 (107,200) 10,614,337
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Schedule of Discretionary Reserves (Schedule 1)

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Included in Reserve Funds are the following:
Capital Capital
Project Maintenance Operating

Reserve Reserve Reserve 2013 2012

  Balance, beginning of year $ 482,965 $ 89,409 $ 200,000 $ 772,374 $ 762,899

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenses - (300,133) - (300,133) (127,189)

Interfund transfers - 136,664 - 136,664 136,664

Balance, end of year $ 482,965 $ (74,060) $ 200,000 $ 608,905 $ 772,374
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Schedule of Office Expenses (Schedule 2)

Budget
For the year ended December 31 2013 2013 2012

Office Expenses

Administrative office $ 11,000 $ 7,548 $ 16,073
Advertising 500 335 839
Board expenses 600 417 385
Banking fees 300 253 223
Professional fees 35,000 38,767 28,607
Research 15,000 10,100 10,100
Telecommunications 2,000 4,339 2,791
Wages and benefits 190,000 182,991 177,503
Training and conferences 5,000 1,149 6,755

$ 259,400 $ 245,899 $ 243,276
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Whistler Housing Authority Ltd.
Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule 3)

For the year ended December 31 2013 2012

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value

Land - 6320 Lorimer $ 514,656 $ - $ 514,656 $ 514,656
Land - 2400 Dave Murray Pl 460,826 - 460,826 460,826
Land - 7325 Seppo's Way 1,633,885 - 1,633,885 1,633,885
Land - 2110 Sarajevo #3 61,863 - 61,863 61,863
Land - 2120 Nordic Court 122,451 - 122,451 122,451
Land - 1060 Legacy Way 36,287 - 36,287 36,287
Building - 6320 Lorimer 1,730,037 770,848 959,189 999,156
Building - 2400 Dave Murray Pl 7,346,163 2,913,229 4,432,934 4,617,639
Building - 7325 Seppo's 6,756,387 2,559,579 4,196,808 4,371,675
Building - 2110 Sarajevo #3 26,512 9,238 17,274 17,993
Building - 2120 Nordic Court 2,782,710 1,057,158 1,725,552 1,797,450
Building - Balsam 342,532 95,433 247,099 257,395
Building - 1060 Legacy Way 7,210,100 958,646 6,251,454 6,511,932
Equipment & furniture 31,661 27,795 3,866 4,833

$29,056,070 $ (8,391,926) $ 20,664,144 $ 21,408,041
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     Certificate of Incorporation 
No. BC0810519 

WHISTLER HOUSING AUTHORITY LTD. 
(the "Company") 

DIRECTORS’ RESOLUTIONS 

Pursuant to the articles of the Company, the following resolutions are passed as resolutions of the 
directors of the Company, duly consented to in writing by all the directors of the Company. 

BE IT RESOLVED: 

That the following persons be and are hereby appointed officers of the Company to hold 
the offices set opposite their names until their successors are appointed, at the pleasure 
of the Board of Directors:  

Michael Hutchison - President; and 
Nancy Wilhelm Morden - Vice-President / Secretary 

That the financial statements of the Company for the last completed financial year be 
approved and that any two directors of the Company be authorized to sign the balance 
sheet included in the financial statements as evidence of such approval. 

DATED this 24th day of February, 2014. 

___________________________ 
Brian Good 

___________________________ 
Duane Jackson  

__________________________ 
Jonathan Decaigny 

___________________________ 
John Grills 

___________________________ 
Michael Hutchison 

___________________________ 
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden 

___________________________ 
Sharon Fugman 

APPENDIX C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENT:  

MAIBC, Dennis Maguire 
MAIBC, Doug Nelson 
MBCSLA, Co-Chair, Crosland Doak 
MBCSLA, Pawel Gradowski 
UDI, Dale Mikkelsen 
Member at Large, Chris Wetaski 
Member at Large, Eric Callender 
Councillor, John Grills 
Senior Planner & ADP Secretary, Melissa Laidlaw 
Recording Secretary, Kay Chow  

REGRETS: 

MAIBC, Dennis Maguire 
MAIBC, Chair, Tom Bunting 

 
Doug Nelson assumed the role of Chair in Tom Bunting’s absence. 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 Moved by Pawel Gradowski 
Seconded by Chris Wetaski 
 
That Advisory Design Panel adopt the Advisory Design Panel agenda of 
November 19, 2014.  

CARRIED
 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 Moved by Pawel Gradowski 

Seconded by Chris Wetaski 
 
That Advisory Design Panel adopt the Regular Advisory Design Panel 
minutes of October 29, 2014.  

CARRIED
 

COUNCIL UPDATE 
 Councillor Grills provided an update on the recent municipal election results. 

Committee appointments will be made at the December 2 Council meeting.  

M I N U T E S  
REGULAR MEETING OF ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2014, STARTING AT 3:00 P.M. 

In the Flute Room at Whistler Municipal Hall 
4325 Blackcomb Way, Whistler, BC V0N 1B4 



MINUTES 
Regular Advisory Design Panel Meeting  
November 19, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

 Crosland Doak declared a conflict and stepped away from the Panel table. 
 

1030 Legacy Way 
The Cinque Townhouse 
Development 
2nd Review 
File No. DVP1092 
 

The applicant team of Brent Murdoch, Murdoch + Company Architecture, 
Crosland Doak, Crosland Doak Design and Rob Velenosi, Westport 
Construction Ltd. entered the meeting. 
 
Melissa Laidlaw, Senior Planner, RMOW introduced the project which was 
reviewed by Panel October 29, 2014. The applicant has addressed Panels’ 
comments, key changes: the building is now staggered along Legacy Way, 2 
m front setback variance request, parking requirements achieved with a 
variance request for 2 of the parking stalls. Staff seeks panel comments 
regarding the variances and all aspects of the design. 
 
Brent Murdoch advised on the following.  

1. Agreement with staff comments regarding the optional parking space on 
the west side; the space is better left as landscaping. 

2. Refined elevation treatments. 
3. From an urban design perspective an enclosed garage vs. a carport 

provides a superior condition, reduces visual clutter. 
4. Flexibility to modify the garage/storage space to suit live/work needs. 
 
Crosland Doak advised on the following. 
 
5. Major changes: building shifted, no parking variance, increased storage. 
6. Each of the units moved 2 ft., this provides a relaxation at the back of the 

units. 
7. Greater front setback variance, previous 2.5 m, current proposal 2 m 

setback. 
8. 1 optional parking space or potential on site snow storage. 
9. Ground floor plan changes, 2 ft. offsets creates building cadence and 

parking at rear of the building. 
10. Mud room and garage consolidated into a flex space. 
11. Level 2 no changes. 
12. Level 3 extension of fin wall and saw tooth roof feature. 
13. Front elevation changes, stepping of units. 
14. Rear elevation saw tooth roof comes forward and down to deck plane 

creating privacy between the decks. 
15. East and west elevations cadence and stepping of the building. 
16. Access hatches to attic storage spaces.  
17. Ground floor bathroom will be plumbed and the use as either a bathroom 

or as storage can be determined by the purchaser. 
18. Landscape plan changes: ornamental pear, evergreens, mountain 

hemlock.  
 
Panel offers the following comments. 
 
Site Context and Landscaping 

1. Panel supports Staff comment regarding removal of the optional parking 
stall on the west side of the property. 
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2. Panel recommended shifting the building en mass northward to better 
accommodate additional regulation parking stalls on the south side 
subject to support by Staff. 

3. A member suggested ensuring year round access to the electrical closet 
at the east walkway.  

 
Form and Character 

1. Panel supports the basic design of the project. 
 
Moved by Eric Callender 
Seconded by Dale Mikkelsen 
 
That the Advisory Design Panel supports the project as presented and does 
not need to see this project return for further review.  

CARRIED.
The applicant team left the meeting. 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

Next Meeting Next meeting December 17, 2014 potentially 2nd review of Clocktower. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 Moved by Doug Nelson 
 
That Advisory Design Panel adjourn the November 19, 2014 committee 
meeting at 3:58 p.m. 

CARRIED
  

 
 
 
 
CHAIR: Doug Nelson 
 
 
 
 
 
SECRETARY: Melissa Laidlaw 
 

 
 
cc: 2034.1 



 
RESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER 

LAND USE CONTRACT AMENDMENT BYLAW (BLUEBERRY HILL) NO. 2072, 2015 
 

A BYLAW TO AMEND A LAND USE CONTRACT 

WHEREAS a land use contract may, under s.930 of the Local Government Act, be amended by bylaw 
with the agreement of the local government and the owner of any parcel of land that is described in the 
bylaw as being covered by the amendment; and 

WHEREAS the owners of strata lots in the Resort Municipality that are subject to a land use contract 
have consented in writing to the amendment of a land use contract charging those strata lots, in order 
that certain provisions of the contract will be consistent with the provisions of the Resort Municipality’s 
Zoning and Parking Bylaw; 

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Land Use Contract Amendment Bylaw (Blueberry 
Hill) No. 2072, 2015” 

 
2.  This bylaw applies to lands whose legal descriptions are set out on Schedule A.  

3. That certain land use contract registered in the Vancouver Land Title Office under No. G2947 on 
January 11, 1979, as subsequently amended under Nos. M1301, GC43586 and BG279304, is 
further amended as set out in Schedule B in respect of the lands to which this bylaw applies, and 
the Corporate Officer shall register a certified copy of this bylaw in the Land Title Office in 
accordance with the Land Title Act and Section 930(9) of the Local Government Act. 

 
  
Given first and second readings this _____ day of _________, ____. 
 
Pursuant to Section 890 of the Local Government Act, a Public Hearing was held this ______ day of 
__________, ______.  
 
Given third reading this ___________ day of __________, ______. 

Approved by the Minister of Transportation this ________day of ____________, ______. 

Adopted by the Council this __ day of __________, _____. 

 

___________________    ____________________ 
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden,    Shannon Story, 
Mayor      Corporate Officer 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a true 
copy of Land Use Contract Amendment 
Bylaw (Blueberry Hill) No. 2072, 2015. 
 

    
Shannon Story,  
Corporate Officer 
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SCHEDULE A 
 
 
 

Parcel Identifier and Legal Description 

PID 024-551-287   Strata Lot 2 D.L. 4757 Strata Plan 
LMS 3932 

PID 024-551-279  Strata Lot 1 D.L. 4751 Strata Plan 
LMS 3932 
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SCHEDULE B 
 
 

Section 2(h) of the Land Use Contract is replaced with the following: 
 
“gross floor area” means gross floor area as defined in Resort Municipality of Whistler Zoning and Parking 
Bylaw No. 303 as amended from time to time, excluding areas specified in subsection 25.1 of Section 5 of 
the bylaw as amended from time to time; 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER 

PARK USE AMENDMENT BYLAW (CROSS COUNTRY AND SNOWSHOE TRAILS)  
NO. 2074, 2015 

A BYLAW TO AMEND PARK USE BYLAW NO. 1526, 2002   

 
WHEREAS the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler has adopted Park Use Bylaw No. 
1526, 2002; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler deems it necessary and expedient 
to amend Park Use Bylaw No. 1526, 2002; 
  
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
TITLE 

1. This Bylaw may be cited as “Park Use Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe 
Trails) No. 2074, 2015”. 

 
AMENDMENTS  

1. Parks Use Bylaw No. 1526, 2002 is amended by adding the following to Section 24 as  
sub-section (f) regarding prohibited activities on Lost Lake Cross Country and Snow 
Shoe Trails: 

 
Section 24 
(f)  From the beginning of winter operations until the end of winter operations 

on the Lost Lake Cross Country Ski and Snowshoe Trails the following is 
prohibited: 

i. Walk, hiking, and running 
ii. Cycling 
iii. Snowmobiling 
iv. Dogs 

 
 
GIVEN FIRST READING this __ day of _______, ____. 
 
GIVEN SECOND READING this __ day of _______, ____. 
 
GIVEN THIRD READING this this __ day of _______, ____. 
 
ADOPTED this this __ day of _______, ____. 
 
 
 
 
              
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden, Mayor   Shannon Story, Corporate Officer 
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I HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a 
true copy of “Park Use Amendment 
Bylaw (Cross Country and 
Snowshoe Trails) No. 2074, 2015” 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Shannon Story, Corporate Officer  
 



 

 

 RESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER 
 

MUNICIPAL TICKET INFORMATION SYSTEM AMENDMENT BYLAW (CROSS 
COUNTRY AND SNOWSHOE TRAILS) NO. 2075, 2015 

 
A BYLAW TO AMEND MUNICIPAL TICKET INFORMATION 

SYSTEM BYLAW NO. 1719, 2005  
 

 
WHEREAS the Council has adopted Municipal Ticket Information System Bylaw No. 
1719, 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council deems it necessary and expedient to amend the Municipal 
Ticket Information System, Bylaw No. 1719, 2005; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1)   This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Municipal Ticket Information 

System Amendment Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe Trails) No. 2075, 
2015”. 

 
2) The Schedules to Municipal Ticket Information System Implementation Bylaw 

No. 1719, 2005 shall be amended as follows: 
A. Schedule “B7” is deleted and replaced with Schedule “B7” 

attached to and forming part of this Bylaw. 
  

 
GIVEN FIRST, SECOND and THIRD READINGS this __ day of ______, ____. 
 
ADOPTED this __ day of ______, ____. 
 
 
 
___________________________                           ________________________                                                        
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden         Shannon Story 
Mayor            Corporate Officer 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a true 
copy of the “Municipal Ticket 
Information System Amendment 
Bylaw (Cross Country and Snowshoe 
Trails) No. 2075, 2015” 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shannon Story 
Corporate Officer 
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SCHEDULE B7 

 

Parks Bylaw No. 1526, 2002. 

 

 

 

DESIGNATED EXPRESSION SECTION FINE 

Cause damage to park flora 10 $200.00 

Cause damage or defacing park property 11 $200.00 

Pollute area of water or land 13 $200.00 

Cause alarm or possible injury to any animal 15 $200.00 

Permitting livestock or horses in a park 19 $50.00 

Dispose of lit or burning substance 20 $200.00 

Leave fire unattended 22 $200.00 

Discharge of fireworks in a park 23 $500.00 

Engage in prohibited activity 24 $100.00 

Post notice or matter in area not permitted 25 $100.00 

Possession of open liquor  28 $100.00 

Operate a motor vehicle except on roadway 30 $100.00 

Permit a dog on a sandy beach between May 1 

and September 30 

33(a) $100.00 

Permit a dog in Lost Lake Park during 

restricted dates 

33(b) $100.00 

Permit dog in waterfowl nesting site 33(c) $200.00 

Permit dog inside any building, washroom, or 

concession. 

33(d) $100.00 

Failure to maintain care and control of a dog 

in an off leash area 

35 $50.00 

Permitting dog in heat in an off leash area 37 $50.00 

Erecting a tent or shelter without a permit 40 $100.00 

Use of amplifying system or loudspeaker 

without a permit 

41 $100.00 

Use of a park for commercial business without 

authorization 

42 $200.00 

Obstruction of a Bylaw Officer or Peace Officer 46 $500.00 

 
 



RESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER 
 

ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW (Development Permit Exemptions) NO. 2071, 2014 
 

A BYLAW TO AMEND THE RESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER  
ZONING AND PARKING BYLAW NO. 303, 1983 

 

WHEREAS Council has designated Development Permit Areas for one or more of the purposes 
enumerated in s. 919.1(1) of the Local Government Act; 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 919.1(4) of the Local Government Act a zoning bylaw may, with 
respect to development permit areas, specify conditions under which a development permit is not required; 

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Resort Municipality of Whistler, in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Development Permit 
Exemptions) No. 2071, 2014”. 

2. Zoning and Parking Bylaw No. 303, 1983 is amended in Section 2 by adding the following definition 
of “stream” in appropriate alphabetical order: 

“stream” includes any of the following that provides fish habitat: 

(a) a watercourse, whether it usually contains water or not; 

(b) a pond, lake, river, creek or brook; 

(c) a ditch, spring or wetland that is connected by surface flow to something referred to in paragraph 
(a) or (b). 

3. The bylaw is further amended in Section 2 by replacing the definition of “high water mark” with the 
following: 

“high water mark” means the visible high water mark of a stream where the presence and action of 
the water are so common and usual, and so long continued in all ordinary years, as to mark on the 
soil of the bed of the stream a character distinct from that of its banks, in vegetation, as well as in 
the nature of the soil itself, and includes the active floodplain; 

4. The bylaw is further amended by deleting “natural boundary” and its definition in Section 2 and by 
replacing “natural boundary” with “high water mark”: 

(a) in the definition of “usable site area” in Section 2; 

(b) throughout Section 5.3 "Floodproofing requirements". 

5.  The bylaw is further amended by adding the following as Section 5.16, “Development Permit 
Exemptions for Detached and Duplex Dwellings”: 

1. Development within the following categories is exempt from the requirement to obtain 
a development permit: 

a. detached dwelling; 

b. duplex dwelling; 

c. auxiliary buildings ancillary to a detached dwelling or duplex dwelling. 



“Zoning Amendment Bylaw (Development Permit Exemptions) No. 2071, 2014” 

 

d. subdivision to create parcels on which the only types of development permitted 
by this bylaw are detached or duplex dwellings. 

2. The exemption described in s. 5.16.1  does not apply if any part of the parcel of land 
that is the subject of the proposed development is: 

a. within a development permit area for the protection of the environment, or for 
the protection of the environment, its ecosystems and biological diversity, and 
within 30 metres of the high water mark of a stream; or 

b. within the RI1 Residential Infill One zone. 
 
 
Given first and second reading this 13th day of January, 2015. 
 
Pursuant to Section 890 of the Local Government Act, a Public Hearing was held this __ day of _______, 
___. 
 
Given third reading this __ day of _______, ___. 

Approved by the Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure this __ day of _______, ___. 

Adopted by the Council this __ day of _______, ___. 

 

      
Nancy Wilhelm-Morden   Shannon Story 
Mayor   Corporate Officer 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a true 
copy of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
(Development Permit Exemptions) No. 
2071, 2014” 
 
 

    
Shannon Story 
Corporate Officer 
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From: Erica Finnsson [mailto:ericafinnsson@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 20, 2015 12:32 PM 
To: Mayor's Office 
Subject: Cheakamus Crossing Heating System ‐ Follow Up 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

This letter is follow up to the letter from me that you received at your last council meeting.  

I have compiled the results of a survey which residents of Cheakamus Crossing completed between January 17 
and January 20, 2015. You will see in the results that it is very apparent that the amount of residents who have 
suffered financial hardship and are not satisfied with the DES is significant enough that you, along with WDC, 
need to take some kind of action on our behalf to find a solution to the problematic DES. We hope that action 
would be to hold DEC Engineering accountable for selling us a system that has not lived up to the standards that
were promised in the development stage of Cheakamus Crossing.  

I am aware that you plan to produce a maintenance manual and schedule. I have consulted with technicians who 
are endorsed by the RMOW to address any maintenance issues. All of them have said the same thing; there is 
no maintenance protocol for our systems. If there is nothing broken, there is no work for them to do. Low and 
behold, every year shortly after that conversation, we have had a system failure. The same technicians have 
stated that there was no way they could have addressed the failure with any preventative maintenance. (A back 
flow valve check is the only exception, and has nothing to do with reliability of the systems.)  

It has been stated that you intend to complete an efficiency study on select units within Cheakamus Crossing. 
An efficiency study is not the correct course of action. We would like to see you engage an engineer who is not 
affiliated with DEC Engineering to conduct a thorough analysis of the entire system to determine the causes of 
the problems. Following that, we would like you and WDC to implement a permanent solution that will address 
and eliminate all of our costly DES repairs. If that means coming to the realization that the DES is not all that it 
was touted be, and that our homes must be converted to a more reliable heating system, then so be it. We are 
open to discussing potential solutions with you.  

Please find two documents attached which will show the results of the survey. Out of a total of 174 units with a 
similar system, 85 of them have completed the survey. Of those 85, 68 responded to the question "are you 
satisfied with the DES?" with "No." In short, 80% of survey respondents are not satisfied with the DES.  

Thank you for your time. 

Erica Finnsson 
ericafinnsson@gmail.com 
604-938-3518 
#57 - 1275 Mount Fee Road 
Whistler BC 
V0N1B1 
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Dear Editor(s), and Municipal Staff: 

The District Energy System or DES is a good example of the Resort Municipalities lack of a good judgment, 
admiralty and courage in the decision making process. Furthermore, it vilifies self control, a historic past and 
Sea to Sky culture and thru this a tragic stab in the loss of iconic Whistler identities.  Not only is municipal 
business, and there business decision making process flawed, the RMOW and Resort District Energy Service 
System (DES) is not more environmentally friendly and yet has an increased monetarily cost. It is more costly 
then regular baseboard heat and a fireplace and not environmentally sane when repair men are driving from 
Squamish everyday on unrepairable boilers or systems that kept freezing up and breaking. Not only is this 
whole dilemma at an increasing legal and environmental cost, the decision making process and our strive to be 
livable has failed, and the whole process incites a re-evaluation of our decision making standards.   

Servicing Solid Fuel Heating in Whistler, amongst many other things, a number of years, where there are 
mountain employees, and village staff post that working hard, being self sufficient and cost effective, with a 
minimum heating arrangement is met, ensures a tough standard of successful survival.   As for business people, 
or our elected  leaders who manage debt, costs, and monetary issues, poor judgment was exercised in these 
systems. Through increasing global complexities, legalisms and a deeply enthused social structure, it is 
vindicated our elected leaders are unwilling to cite any true substance regarding there system or design.  The 
involved parties include: Whistler Town Council,  Vancouver Olympic Committee 2010, Four Host First 
Nations, Province of BC, Federal Government of Canada, Whistler Sport Legacies Society, and the Whistler 
Housing Authority.  Many of these parties have staff no longer in office or are hidden behind 
a surreptitious number of organizations and office staff for any legal team to counter what really went on, who 
is responsible and how it is prevented in the future. It is sad and especially vindicates a tragic loss of our 
identity when someone takes so long to speak up or stand up about something as important as heating your 
home.   

I need not get into greater details about the heating arrangements in Cheakamus Crossings Whitewater other 
than what was promised environmentally efficient and low cost and they are not, and have since moved to 
Alpine where we are burning lots of wood at a much lower cost, as well as environmental impact. Not long after 
here realizing that greater town leadership potential is needed I made my first run at council campaigning on 
Whistler, a founding forefather, iconic identity and most importantly the youth.   

As for the Whistler business people and elected partisans that manage hundreds of millions of dollars every-
year, on-goingly, we need not mention that someone needs to step it up, and this an excellent opportunity for the 
community and newly elected town council(ers). Here is a hint. For good certifiable wood fireplaces, they start 
at about $900.  Much of our village and surrounding communities were and still are heated this way, and you 
can contact me at Whistler Chimney or Critter Get Ritter any-time.   

Cheakamus crossing left behind a decent Olympic legacy.  So did Calgary and Bragg Creek; and Salt Lake, 
Beaver Flats. We all should be honored to have the building projects complete, sports facility housing, and an 
increase in develop-able land and real estate.  Although the DES is more costly, there are more breakdowns and 
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inefficiencies than was previously discussed and brought to the general public's attention, a select group 
did capitalize however lets not let it be at the cost of real risk takers, entrepreneurs as well as future leaders.  

Sincerely, Thank you, Tristan Andrew Galbraith 
8160 Alpine Way Whistler, BC V0N 1B8 (604) 902-7417 
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From: Beau [mailto:beau@wrm.bc.ca]  
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 2:34 PM 
To: Mayor's Office 
Subject: Northern Lights Rezoning completion 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

I am writing on behalf of the Northern Lights Strata Corporation.  The Strata Council would like to extend their thanks to 
the RMOW Council (past and present) for reviewing and eventually approving the re‐zoning application at Northern 
Lights.  This will allow the owners at Northern Lights (and many other Strata Corporations in Whistler in years to come), 
the ability to bring non‐conforming alterations back into compliance with the RMOW building department 
regulations.  The process that the Owners at Northern Lights have undertaken was a drawn out and expensive 
procedure but through the guidance of the planning department (Melissa Laidlaw especially), one that was easy to 
navigate. 

I do hope that other Strata Corporations in Whistler take notice of the process that Northern Lights has just completed 
and encourage their owners to go down a similar path if they have similar issues to deal with.  The non‐conforming 
alterations that exist all throughout Whistler pose a potential risk to owners, guests, and tourists.  I truly hope that this 
decision by the RMOW Council will "open the floodgates" to similar applications being made by Strata Corporations all 
through the Sea to Sky corridor. 

Thanks again for your work in this regard! 

Sincerely, 

Beau Craig 

Beau Craig 
Strata Property Agent 
call direct:  604‐972‐1704 

wrm. strata management & real estate services ltd. 

www.wrm.bc.ca 

Whistler Office:   202‐1410 Alpha Lake Road  604‐932‐2972 
Squamish Office:  #1‐38003 Second Avenue 
Toll Free Fax:       1‐855‐673‐6414 



                      EWA ZEBROWSKI 94 ELMWOOD PLACE OUTREMONT QUEBEC H2V 2E7  TEL. (514) 271-3901  
                                                                                          ezebrowski@hotmail.com 

 
 
 
Mayor & Council 
Resort Municipality of Whistler  
4325 Blackcomb Way 
Whistler, B.C. 
VON 1B4 
 
December 17, 2014. 
 
Dear Mayor & Council: 
I have a special request. 
I hope that the Resort Municipality of Whistler will consider making a special one time gift to the 
Walter Zebrowski Memorial Scholarship Fund.  The Scholarship Fund was begun in memory of my 
late father in 1997 and has been administered by the Rotary Club of Whistler since its inception.  

My father, Wladyslaw (Walter) Zebrowski arrived at Whistler in the early sixties.  For three decades, 
Walter was instrumental in Whistler’s growth and development. He founded the Garibaldi Whistler 
Development Company and created Eva Lake Park, a man-made, trout-filled lake that he donated to 
the RMOW in the seventies.  Today the park, maintained beautifully by the Municipality, is enjoyed 
by Whistler residents and visitors alike. He founded the Whistler Water Works and Whistler 
Volunteer Fire Department. He was a charter member of the Rotary Club of Whistler and co-
founder of the Whistler Chamber of Commerce.  He was responsible for bringing television to the 
Valley. In 1971 he was named Citizen of the Year.  In 2010 the RMOW named the bridge which 
leads into the Olympic Village in his honor.  He made a difference through his actions and his 
ongoing commitment to the community.  

The Walter Zebrowski Memorial Scholarship honors his legacy.  It reflects his belief in history, in 
community, and in giving back. To date there have been 17 scholarship winners, all graduates of the 
local high school.  These young scholarship recipients have all demonstrated exceptional community 
involvement.  Currently, we are hoping to raise enough funds to guarantee the existence of the 
Scholarship Fund for the years to come.  We are also hoping to increase the annual Scholarship gift 
from$500 to $1000 per student per year. 
  
The Whistler Blackcomb Foundation generously contributed an additional $10,000 to the Fund this 
Fall and I am looking to raise another $10,000.  Given my father's involvement with the community 
of Whistler and his generosity to the Resort Municipality of Whistler in particular, I am hoping that 
the Municipality will want to become involved. 
 
My father was a man with vision.  He loved Whistler and wanted it to flourish.  I include a copy of 
the Press Release recently issued by the Rotary Club of Whistler following the Whistler Blackcomb 
gift as well as a piece I wrote about my father for his Memorial in 1996.  . 
  
It would be significant and meaningful to have the participation and support of the Resort 
Municipality of Whistler in this worthwhile endeavor.  Please do not be hesitant to be in touch if you 
have any questions or require any further information. 
 
I wish you all the best for the Holiday Season. 
  
Best Regards, 
 
 
 
Ewa Zebrowski 
 
cc Marg Pallot 
  
  



 

Rotary Club of Whistler • P.O. Box 1121 • Whistler, BC V0N 1B0 

 

December 8, 2012 

 

 

Rotary Club of Whistler 

PO Box 1121, Whistler, BC 

V0N 1B0 
 

 

 

PRESS RELEASE: Walter Zebrowski Scholarship Fund - a legacy for the future  

The Rotary Club of Whistler and the Zebrowski-Rubin Family wish to express sincere 

appreciation to the Whistler/Blackcomb Foundation for awarding a $10,000 Grant towards the 

legacy of honoring one of Whistler’s visionary and iconic pioneers, Wladyslaw (Walter) 

Zebrowski.  

For three decades, Walter was instrumental in Whistler’s growth and development. He founded 

the Garibaldi Whistler Development Company and created Eva Lake Park, a man-made, trout-

filled lake that he donated to the RMOW in the 70’s. He also founded the Whistler Water Works 

and Whistler Volunteer Fire Department. He was a charter member of the Rotary Club of 

Whistler and co-founder of the Whistler Chamber of Commerce and was responsible for bringing 

television to the Valley. In 1971 he was named Citizen of the Year.  

The Walter Zebrowski Scholarship has been awarded annually to a Whistler Secondary graduate 

who demonstrates leadership and outstanding community service since 1997. To date, 17 

scholarships have been granted with the most recent recipient being Lauren McIvor who is 

currently pursuing a career in Journalism at Carleton University. The Whistler/Blackcomb Grant 

will help sustain the Walter Zebrowski Scholarship Fund in the years to come  

Additional funds are currently being raised by the family and Rotary in order to maintain the 

future of this Scholarship. The Zebrowski-Rubin Family and the Rotary Club have each 

contributed an additional $1,000 and welcome future involvement from the public.  If you are 

interested in the Walter Zebrowski Scholarship Fund please contact the Rotary Club Whistler for 

details.  

Submitted by: Ewa Zebrowski and Jenny Perez, President, Rotary Club of Whistler 

 



Wladyslaw (Walter) Zebrowski 

A Man with a Vision 

Whistler:  Home Sweet Home 

 

Walter Zebrowski brought television to Whistler in 1970.  

In 2010 the whole world will be watching the Whistler Olympics on television. 
 

 
Wladyslaw Zebrowski was a man with a vision.  In the mid-60s he fell in love with Whistler 
Mountain. 
 
Having immigrated to Canada in 1948 after the end of World War II, Captain Zebrowski 
found himself the owner of a chicken farm, a far cry from an army career!  He had had an 
illustrious war career as a soldier in the Polish Army under British Command and had visited 
many place with exotic-sounding names like Dzalalabad, Arkangelsk, Uzbeckstan, Monte 
Cassino.  He had been awarded numerous medals for bravery, having been a prisoner of war 
on a few occasions.  He was idealistic, hard-working and dedicated.  He had no interest in 
returning to a Poland under communist rule and so decided to come to Canada in search of 
freedom and a new life.  He always remained proud of is Polish roots and traditions.   

 
In the mid-60s, Walter, as he was known to his English friends, decided to move to Whistler.  
Whistler barely existed.  There was no highway, no electricity, no running water, no sewage 
system.  There was only this big beautiful mountain waiting to be discovered ! 
 
Walter had always loved the mountains.  Having had enough of city life, he decided to leave 
Vancouver.   He found the idea of settling in this virgin territory exciting.  He wanted to be a 
pioneer, to experience the beauty of the Canadian wilderness.  As a child I remember him 
trying desperately to find a partner to join him in the adventure of developing the crown 
land that he had purchased in the valley.  There were no takers.  So alone he accepted the 
challenge. 
 
He lived at Whistler for 30 years.  During that period he founded Garibaldi Whistler 
Development Company Limited, developed his land, built condominiums and homes with 
Arthur Erickson, created a park with a trout-filled lake, founded the Whistler Water Works, 
the Whistler Volunteer Fire Department, was a charter member of the Whistler Rotary Club, 
was co-founder of the Chamber of Commerce, and even succeed in bringing television to 
the valley, against all odds and much criticism.  In 1971 he was named Citizen of the Year.   
 
He became the community watchdog, often protesting vociferously when he did not agree 
with Municipal or Provincial politics.  He was respected and appreciated for his 
determination and energy.  Walter knew how to get things done. 
 
Walter saw Whistler evolve from a quiet ski hill to a world-class ski resort.  He himself often 
remarked that the changes were unbelievable!  He was proud of Whistler. 
 
In later years I often heard him speak about how important he felt it was to give back to 
one’s community.  For him, Whistler had represented a dream.  He liked the idea of 



belonging and contributing to a new, vital and growing community.  He liked the idea of 
making a difference.  He felt he was part of Whistler’s success, of Whistler’s history. 
 
My father was not an engineer, nevertheless  he took it upon himself to find out what was 
needed to bring television to Whistler.  He went to the CRTC offices in Victoria to obtain 
information and permission for a TV rebroadcasting station for Whistler.  For months he 
searched the mountains by helicopter or on skidoo for a TV signal. He found the best TV 
signal on Sproat Mountain, and brought the necessary equipment to the top of Sproat, 
Sproat being accessible only by helicopter.  The original TV receiver was housed in an old 
refrigerator!  Early recycling!  My father was a budget-minded man.  The station had to be 
serviced and the batteries changed periodically.  In winter the antennas had to be de-iced.  
My dad organized the crews and the helicopters to do the work and during the later years of 
his life gave orders to the top of the mountain via walkie-talkie.  In order to have the 
necessary funds to maintain the equipment in good working order my father founded the 
Whistler Mountain TV Society.  And so in 1970 Whistler inhabitants could watch the news 
on television! 
 
The book he wrote, In Search of Freedom, has an interesting chapter on Whistler.  The lake 
and the park that he named after me, Eva Lake, was donated by him to the community of  
Whistler in the early 1970s. Initially he stocked the lake with trout.  Today the park is 
enjoyed by residents and the fish are still jumping, the park being maintained by the RMOW.  
 
On May 15, 2009 the new bridge at Cheakamus Creek which leads to the Olympic Village 
will be named after my father.  
 
Thus Walter Zebrowski will be remembered in the valley that meant so much to him, the 
valley that he called home.  
 
 

 

A man’s character is his fortune.  Polish Proverb 

 

 
Ewa Monika Zebrowski 
514-271-3901 
ezebrowski@hotmail.com 
www.ewazebrowski.com 
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